Settlement Sustainability Study 2024

Policy and Strategy Team September 2024



This page is intentionally blank.

If you need this document in another format, such as large print, please call Lichfield District Council on 01543 308000 and ask to speak to the Spatial policy and Delivery team or email developmentplans@lichfielddc.gov.uk.

Contents

1.	Introduction and purpose of the study	7
	Part 1: Settlement hierarchy	7
	Part 2: Settlement infrastructure capacity	7
2.	Policy context	9
	National policy context	9
	Local policy context	10
3.	Methodology	11
	Assessment of settlement sustainability	11
	Access to services and facilities	14
	Education facilities	14
	Primary schools	14
	Secondary schools	15
	Nurseries and pre-schools	15
	Education scoring	15
	Health	16
	GP surgeries	16
	Pharmacies	16
	Hospitals	16
	Dentists	17
	Opticians	17
	Health scoring	17
	Culture and community	18
	Community buildings	18
	Cultural buildings	18
	Libraries	18
	Pubs and bars	19
	Culture and community scoring	19
	Leisure and open spaces	20
	Indoor and outdoor sports	20
	Open spaces	20
	Leisure and open space scoring	21
	Employment	21
	Time taken to nearest employment area	22
	Distance travelled to work	22

	Employment scoring	22
	Transport	23
	Bus services	23
	Railway stations	23
	Access to primary road network	24
	Transport Scoring	24
	Retail and Services	24
	Financial services	25
	Supermarkets and convenience stores	25
	Non-convenience stores	25
	Restaurants, cafes and takeaways	26
	Retail and services scoring	26
4.	Settlement study results	27
6.	Settlement infrastructure capacity	29
	Education	29
	School capacity in Lichfield district	30
	Future primary and secondary education provision	35
	Education summary	36
	Health	36
	Primary Healthcare	37
	Secondary healthcare	41
	Healthcare summary	42
	Transport	42
	Bus services	43
	Rail services	44
	Highways	46
	Transport Summary	46
7.	Settlement infrastructure capacity – initial findings	48
8.	Settlement hierarchy	49
9.	Settlement sustainability summary	52
Αр	pendix A: Department for Transport travel data	53
Αр	pendix B: Settlement scores by indicator	54
Αр	pendix C: Services and facilities by settlement	55
	Lichfield	55
	Burntwood	63

Shenstone	69
Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill	74
Little Aston	78
Armitage with Handsacre	82
Fradley	86
Alrewas	90
Whittington	93
Hopwas	97
Stonnall	100
Kings Bromley	103
Drayton Bassett	107
Hill Ridware	110
Colton	113
Longdon	116
Elford	119
Hammerwich	122
Clifton Campville	125
Wigginton	128
Edingale	130
Upper Longdon	133
Harlaston	136
Hamstall Ridware	130

1. Introduction and purpose of the study

- 1.1 The purpose of the Settlement Sustainability Study is to provide a comparative assessment of the sustainability of the settlements within Lichfield district. This will provide an assessment of the relative level of services and facilities within each settlement. This evidence will help to inform a revised settlement hierarchy which, along with a range of evidence, will inform our local plan. The study is comprised of two parts, these being:
 - A settlement hierarchy which considers the sustainability of different settlements across the district and groups them into categories.
 - An analysis of the capacity of critical infrastructure types.

Part 1: Settlement hierarchy

- 1.2 The settlement hierarchy is a way of categorising the settlements in Lichfield district and grouping those settlements together that have similar characteristics in terms of the services and facilities their residents have access to. This assessment will use a desk-based approach to detail and assess the sustainability of settlements within the district, primarily using:
 - Data on available services and facilities present within settlements for example: post office, health facilities (including doctors' surgeries, pharmacists and dentists), schools, community halls, pubs and shops.
 - Data on the availability of sustainable methods of transport, including public transport and the accessibility to services and facilities using sustainable transport.
 - Data on the accessibility to employment opportunities, leisure, open spaces and retail facilities.
- 1.3 Following the assessment, at the top of the hierarchy are the settlements which have the greatest level of infrastructure in terms of the range of facilities and services accessible to their communities. Smaller settlements with the least facilities, services and accessibility to public transport are at the bottom of the hierarchy.
- 1.4 In addition to providing evidence which will assist in the development of the Local Plan and the settlement hierarchy, this study will also provide evidence which can be used by communities preparing neighbourhood plans.
- 1.5 The Council has previously prepared several <u>settlement sustainability studies</u>, the latest in 2020. This Settlement Sustainability Study builds upon and updates that earlier evidence and considers the full range of settlements across the district.

Part 2: Settlement infrastructure capacity

- 1.6 Part 2 of the study will consider the existing capacity of the following critical infrastructure services, which are considered to have the greatest potential to limit growth in the district. These are:
 - Primary and secondary education provision.
 - Healthcare provision.
 - Public transport and highways.

- 1.7 This will inform] the council's selection of a preferred growth option by providing an understanding of infrastructure services in our key settlements and identifying existing capacity surpluses and deficits. Specifically, this study will:
 - Assess existing services and facilities and any significant infrastructure capacity or constraints that are evident.
 - Identify planned enhancement of the capacity of existing or new infrastructure.
 - Consider the impact of external drivers and potential growth options.
- 1.8 At this early stage of the plan making process, it will not be possible to be specific about the quantum or future locations for development. As a result, many of the findings of this study will be based solely upon the review of existing strategies and publicly available information provided to the council by infrastructure delivery partners. As the plan progresses, further stakeholder engagement will take place and this study will be updated to reflect those findings.

2. Policy context

National policy context

- 2.1 The <u>National Planning Policy Framework</u> (NPPF) was revised in December 2023¹ and sets out national planning policies for England. A number of the NPPF's key principles are relevant when considering the sustainability of settlements in the district. The NPPF places great importance on the delivery of sustainable development and the promotion of healthy and safe communities.
- 2.2 In particular, the NPPF emphasises the importance of minimising the length and number of journeys to work, shopping and leisure activities and increasing the opportunities for sustainable forms of transport to be used to make such trips. Further to this, the NPPF is clear that authorities should avoid isolated development in rural areas where access to facilities is more limited. The key parts of the NPPF which relate to this study are:
 - Paragraph 8: Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has
 three overarching objectives, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in
 mutually supportive ways, one of these is a social objective to support strong, vibrant
 and healthy communities, by ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can
 be provided to meet the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a
 well-designed and safe built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that
 reflect current and future needs and support communities' health social and cultural
 well-being.
 - Paragraph 9 of the NPPF notes that planning policies and decisions should play an active
 role in guiding development towards sustainable locations, taking local circumstances
 into account, to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of each area.
 Furthermore, to promote sustainable development in rural areas, housing should be
 located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities.
 - Paragraph 83 of the NPPF requires that new housing should be located where it will
 enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities in order to promote sustainable
 development in rural areas. It also advises that planning policies should identify
 opportunities for villages to grow and thrive, especially where this will support local
 services and acknowledges that where there are groups of smaller settlements,
 development in one village may support services in a village nearby. Paragraph 90 also
 requires local authorities to define a network and hierarchy of town centres in their
 area.
 - Paragraph 96: Planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive
 and safe places and beautiful buildings which enable and support healthy lifestyle,
 especially where this would address identified local health and wellbeing needs.
 - Paragraph 97: To provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning policies and decisions should plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities and ensure an integrated

¹ During the preparation of this study, and following the UK General Election in July 2024, a revised NPPF has been <u>published for consultation</u>. Should the final version of the new NPPF necessitate revision of this study then this will be undertaken as part of any future update.

- approach to considering the location of housing, economic uses and community facilities and services.
- Paragraph 99: It is important that a sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities.
- Paragraph 109: Significant development should be focused on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes.
- Paragraph 110: Planning policies should support an appropriate mix of uses across an area and within larger scale sites, to minimise the number and length of journeys needed for employment, shopping, leisure, education and other activities.

Local policy context

- 2.3 The Local Plan in Lichfield district consists of two parts: the Local Plan Strategy and Local Plan Allocations documents. The Local Plan Strategy was adopted in February 2015 and sets out the spatial strategy for the district through 'Core Policy 1: The Spatial Strategy' and 'Core Policy 6: Housing Delivery'. This focuses growth on the sustainable settlements of Lichfield and Burntwood with further growth at several 'key' rural settlements (Alrewas, Armitage with Handsacre, Fazeley, Fradley, Shenstone and Whittington).
- 2.4 The Local Plan Allocations document forms the second part of the adopted local plan and was adopted in July 2019. The Local Plan Allocations allocates a range of sites across the settlements to deliver the growth requirements of the Local Plan Strategy. The council has made significant progress in delivering this scale of growth through allocated sites included within both parts of the adopted plan.
- 2.5 The current local plan included a commitment to review the local plan. Work on the review of the current local plan, known as the Local Plan Review or Local Plan 2040 commenced in 2018 and the Local Plan 2040 was submitted for examination in June 20022. In October 2023 a decision was taken by Full Council to withdraw the submitted plan from its examination and to commence work on a new local plan for the district.
- 2.6 The <u>Local Development Scheme</u> outlines the timetable for the new local plan. This study will form part of the evidence base being developed by the council to support the new local plan. It will also be of use to those communities preparing and updating neighbourhood plans.

3. Methodology

Assessment of settlement sustainability

- 3.1 The following section sets out the methodology which has been used to assess the sustainability of settlements within the district. The study has used a desk-based approach, alongside site visits and local knowledge of the settlements, to understand which facilities and services are present within the settlement.
- 3.2 For the purposes of the study, all settlements which have settlement boundaries identified through the adopted local plan have been assessed. There are numerous small settlements and hamlets within the district many located within the wider rural areas of the district some of which are 'washed over' by Green Belt. For the purposes of this study, these settlements are not assessed. The following settlements have been assessed:
 - Lichfield City.
 - Burntwood.
 - Alrewas.
 - Armitage with Handsacre.
 - Clifton Camille.
 - Colton.
 - Drayton Bassett.
 - Edingale.
 - Elford.
 - Fazeley, Mile Oak and Bonehill.
 - Fradley.
 - Hammerwich
 - Hamstall Ridware.
 - Harlaston.
 - Hill Ridware.
 - Hopwas.
 - Kings Bromley.
 - Little Aston.
 - Longdon.
 - Shenstone.
 - Stonnall.
 - Streethay.
 - Upper Longdon.

- Whittington and
- Wigginton.
- 3.3 To measure the comparative sustainability of settlements, several key services and facilities have been identified which will be used as criteria to be recorded on a settlement-by-settlement basis.
- 3.4 The services and facilities which make the criteria within this study have been selected as they are considered key for a sustainable settlement. These facilities have been chosen to reflect the criteria in the NPPF for sustainable and community facilities as can be seen in Table 1 (below).
- 3.5 In addition to the NPPF, the services and facilities have also partly been identified in part by understanding which services and facilities communities make the most use of. The Department for Transport National Travel Survey 2022 set out data which demonstrates the main reasons people make trips (Appendix A). The data demonstrates that shopping, commuting and education are responsible for the highest number of trips on average nationally.
- 3.6 Analysis of this data would suggest that where communities have better access to these services and facilities locally or by sustainable modes of transport then this will assist in reducing the number of trips made.

Table 1: Sustainability criteria and facilities/services

Guidance **Example facility/service** NPPF Paragraph 96 (Promoting healthy and safe communities) Sports/recreation ground. Planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe places and beautiful buildings which: Playing pitches and recreational open space. Enable and support healthy lifestyle, especially where this would address identified local health and wellbeing needs – for General Store. example through the provision of safe and accessible green Health facilities. infrastructure, sports facilities, local shops, access to healthier food, allotments and layouts that encourage walking and cycling.

Guidance	Example facility/service
NPPF Paragraph 97 (Promoting healthy and safe communities) To provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning policies and decisions should: • Plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities (such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments;	 Play parks. Public Houses. Places of worship. Community meeting space. Employment Opportunities.
 Ensure an integrated approach to considering the location of housing, economic uses and community facilities and services. 	
NPPF Paragraph 99 (Promoting healthy and safe communities) It is important that a sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities.	Primary School.Secondary School.
NPPF Paragraph 109 (Promoting sustainable transport) Significant development should be focused on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes.	Public Transport Provision.
NPPF Paragraph 110 (Promoting sustainable transport) Planning policies should: Support an appropriate mix of uses across an area and within larger scale sites, to minimise the number and length of journeys needed for employment, shopping, leisure, education and other activities.	 Employment Opportunities. Access to centres using public transport. Distance to centre.
 NPPF Paragraph 8 (Achieving sustainable development) Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways: A social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of present and future generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe built environment, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities' health social and cultural well-being. 	 General Medical Practice. Pharmacy. Library. Post Office.

Access to services and facilities

- 3.7 The key services and facilities have been identified and recorded for each settlement using a desktop analysis. Once these were identified, the relevant parish councils were contacted to provide a local check of the services and facilities identified. In determining these indicators, the study has had regard to key national policy requirements regarding sustainable development, sustainable transport and promoting healthy and safe communities as set out in Table 1. Context has also been considered in regard to local circumstances of the district and its relationship with other neighbouring settlements.
- 3.8 The key indicators can be grouped into themes as set out below and will be used to indicate the sustainability of a settlement within Lichfield district:
 - Education.
 - Health.
 - Culture and community.
 - Leisure and open spaces.
 - Employment.
 - Transport.
 - Retail and services.
- 3.9 These indicators will give a consistent high-level indication of the services and facilities accessible to existing settlements; as well as the capacity of these services and facilities to support further growth. Each of these key services areas are considered in greater detail in the following sections. This will provide justification and an explanation as to how each settlement has been assessed against the specific criteria.

Education facilities

3.10 Education was the third biggest generator of trips in 2022 according to Department for Transport data (**Appendix A**). Therefore, the location of schools is important when considering development to reduce avoidable trips by private transport. Paragraph 99 of the NPPF highlights the importance of meeting the needs of existing new communities by ensuring a sufficient choice of school places.

Primary schools

- 3.11 Local primary education provision is important for a child's development and reduces the need for children to travel large distances. State funded primary schools will generally cater for a local demand and provide an accessible and important day-today facility. Private schools also play a significant role in providing local educational opportunities and can help meet the demand for primary education within a community. Schools can extend their regular service such as before and after school clubs, and preschool nurseries; in addition, the facilities can be used for other community uses or act as a local community hub.
- 3.12 For this indicator, points are awarded based on the number of primary schools within the settlement, using the government's <u>Get information about schools</u> service and <u>Staffordshire</u> <u>County Council's School Search tool</u>.

Secondary schools

3.13 For this indicator, points are awarded based on the number of secondary schools within the settlement, using the government's <u>Get information about schools</u> service and <u>Staffordshire County Council's School Search tool</u>. Additionally, public transport access to a secondary school is considered if there is no secondary school within the settlement. Therefore, if a settlement lacks a secondary school but has a dedicated school bus service or rail connection to a secondary school outside the settlement, it will score 3 points.

Nurseries and pre-schools

- 3.14 In addition to schooling, local childcare is a particular requirement for those with young children. A choice of childcare within a settlement can draw people with young children, or those wishing to have children to an area. The availability of places in pre-schools and nurseries provides an indication of the opportunities available for potential new residents and the sustainability of a settlement to provide services to its existing residents or those working within it. Provision of sufficient pre-school and nursery facilities allows families to return to work (where possible or wanted), thus helping to stimulate the economy and improve the prosperity of residents.
- 3.15 The number of pre-school and nurseries in a settlement has been measured using a combination of Google search, the government's <u>Get information about schools</u> service and the <u>daynurseries.co.uk search facility</u>. This includes private nurseries providing year-round care as well as term time only pre-schools and pre-schools attached to primary schools.

Education scoring

Table 2: Education scoring

Education	Scoring	
Number of pre-schools and nurseries in settlement	Number	Points
	11+	10
	6 to 10	6
	3 to 5	4
	1 to 2	2
	0	0
Number of primary schools in settlement	Number	Points
	6+	10
	4 to 5	6
	2 to 3	4
	1	2
	0	0
Number of secondary schools in settlement	Number	Points
	2+	10
	1	5
	Settlement has public transport	
	access to a secondary school	3
	Settlement has no access to a	
	secondary school	0
	Maximum score education:	30

Health

- 3.16 This section considers healthcare provision across Lichfield district. Whilst these forms of infrastructure will be used infrequently by most of the district's residents, they can be of vital importance for the health and wellbeing of residents, when they are required. They are clearly therefore of critical importance to the district.
- 3.17 It is considered that below indicators meet the NPPF's principles of sustainable development through the social objective of providing accessible services (paragraph 8) not only in distance but through the number of GP surgeries which can be used to represent a wider provision of healthcare services. These indicators also meet NPPF guidance to create and maintain healthy communities by reducing inequalities and providing greater access to first contact health services and reducing the impact on emergency services and hospital care through early intervention.

GP surgeries

- 3.18 GP surgeries provide an essential healthcare service which should be accessible within a small catchment and meet a local demand. This category includes both permanent surgeries and part-time surgeries.
- 3.19 Access to GP surgeries will be measured by counting the number of GP surgeries in a settlement, using the NHS find a GP tool. A settlement with 4 or more surgeries indicates that the settlement has a wide range of healthcare services and settlements; with 1 GP surgery representing adequate healthcare provision. Settlements with no GP surgery were assessed by the travel time by car to a GP surgery (which could be located outside the district) during peak hours of 8-9am.

Pharmacies

- 3.20 The provision of a pharmacy plays an integral role in maintaining the health of the community and can provide valuable health care advice and services which can free up GP capacity. Pharmacies provide an important service to those who do not have regular access to private transport or in locations with limited public transport.
- 3.21 Access to pharmacies has been measured by counting the number of pharmacies in the settlement using the NHS find a pharmacy tool. A settlement with 4 or more pharmacies indicates a wide range and greater access to healthcare services; whilst a settlement with 1 pharmacy represents adequate provision. Settlements with no pharmacy are assessed by the travel time to a pharmacy (within or outside the district) within peak hours of 8-9am.

Hospitals

3.22 Access to hospitals has been measured using the NHS find a hospital tool. A settlement will score highly against this indicator if it has a hospital with an accident and emergency (A&E) department within its boundary, however there are currently no hospitals within Lichfield District that provide an A&E department. Points will therefore be awarded to settlements located near hospitals with A&E departments and/or if there is a community hospital (non-A&E) within the settlement.

Dentists

- 3.23 As with the provision of a pharmacy, a dentist is a service beneficial to the overall healthcare provision that a settlement can offer. However, a demand for a dentist is usually less frequent than that for a GP.
- 3.24 Access to a dentist has been measured by counting the number of dental practices using the NHS find a dentist tool. For the purposes of this study, only dentists offering NHS appointments have been included.

Opticians

3.25 Opticians are considered an important healthcare service, particularly for the elderly. Access to opticians has been measured by counting the number of opticians within a settlement using the NHS Find an NHS sight test tool.

Health scoring

Table 3: Health scoring

Health	Scoring	
	Number	Points
Number of GP surgeries in settlement		
Drive time from centre of settlement during peak hours		
(08:00-09:00 weekdays)	4 or more	10
	2 to 3	8
	1	6
	No surgery but GP surgery	
	available between 0-10 minutes	
	by car	4
	GP surgery available 10-20	
	minutes by car	2
	Surgery more than 20 minutes	
	away by car	0
Number of pharmacies in settlement/access to		
pharmacy	Number	Points
	4 or more	10
	2 to 3	8
	1	6
	No pharmacy but pharmacy up to	
	5 mins away by car	4
	No pharmacy but pharmacy up to	
	15 mins away by car	2
	No pharmacy and pharmacy is	
	more than 15 mins away by car	0
Hospital		
Departing from centre of settlement at peak time 08:00-	Settlement has a hospital with	
09:00 weekdays	a&e	10
Add together points if settlement has a non A&E		
hospital and has access to an A&E outside of settlement	Settlement is within 0-15 minutes'	
within 30 minutes	drive of a hospital with a&e	8
	Settlement is within 16-30	
	minutes' drive of a hospital with	
	a&e	6

Health	Scoring	
	Settlement is more than 30	
	minutes' drive from a hospital	
	with a&e	4
	Settlement has a hospital without	
	A&E	2
	Settlement is more than 1 hour	
	drive from a hospital with a&e	0
Dentists		
Number of NHS dental practices in settlement	5 to 10	5
	1 to 4	3
	No NHS dental practice	0
Optician		
Number of opticians in settlement	5 to 10	5
	1 to 4	3
	No optician in settlement	0
	Maximum score health:	40

Culture and community

- 3.26 Paragraph 97 of the NPPF highlights that social and cultural well-being should be taken into account to help achieve the principles of sustainable development and that prosperous and rural economies should enable the "retention and development of "accessible local services and community facilities, such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship."
- 3.27 This section will look at the most appropriate measures to assess the sustainability of a settlement from a cultural and community perspective. The availability of community buildings, including community centres, village halls and faith facilities, can have a direct influence over the quality of life of residents. Community buildings can help to promote healthy and socially inclusive communities.

Community buildings

3.28 These spaces provide a key facility that enables a range of social, recreational and cultural activities. These are essential to help manifest strong community bonds and promote good mental health. This indicator has been measured by totalling the number of churches, village halls, scout huts, cadet huts, community day centres and pavilions within a settlement².

Cultural buildings

3.29 The number of cultural buildings in a settlement is an important indicator of the community's access to cultural and recreational activities. These buildings, which include theatres, museums, concert halls, cinemas and visitor centres, serve as hubs for artistic expression, historical education, entertainment and tourism³.

Libraries

3.30 The presence of a library within a settlement is an important resource for residents, offering access to books, digital media, internet services and a variety of educational and cultural

² Sources: Map review and Lichfield District Council, Scouts – Find your local group, Staffordshire Connects, individual Parish Council websites, Find a Church

³ Sources: Map review and HMRC Find a property search, Staffordshire Connects.

- programmes. Libraries serve as community hubs by fostering learning, social interaction and community cohesion.
- 3.31 The opening times of a library are critical in determining how accessible it is to the community. Extensive and flexible opening hours ensure that people with different schedules, including students, working professionals and families can access library services. Libraries with generous opening times can also offer more events and activities for the community⁴.
- 3.32 In areas where there is no permanent library, mobile libraries⁵ play a vital role in ensuring that residents still have access to library services. They provide an invaluable service to individuals who might otherwise be unable to visit a library, such as the elderly, those with mobility issues, or residents without reliable transport.

Pubs and bars

3.33 Public houses can provide a community focus and can also diversify their function to a number of other services such as a community room, small shop or youth centre. They play a significant role in the social fabric of a community, providing venues for socialising, hosting events and supporting local traditions⁶.

Culture and community scoring

Table 4: Culture and community scoring

Culture and community	Scoring	
Number of community buildings in settlement	15 or more	10
Churches, village halls, scout huts, cadet huts,		
community day centres, pavilions	10 to 14	8
	6 to 9	6
	3 to 5	4
	1 to 2	2
	No community buildings	0
Number of cultural buildings in settlement	5 or more	10
Theatres, museums, concert halls, cinemas, visitor		
centres	4	8
	3	6
	2	4
	1	2
	0	0
Opening times of library	5 or more days a week	10
	4 to 4.5 days a week	8
	3 to 3.5 days a week	6
	1 to 2.5 days a week	4
	Mobile library	2
	No library present	0
Number of pubs/bars	11 or more	10
	6 to 10	8
	3 to 5	6

⁴ Source: Lichfield District Council - Libraries

_

⁵ Source: Staffordshire County Council – Locations served by mobile libraries

⁶ Source: What Pub

Culture and community	Scoring	
	2	4
	1	2
	No pub present	0
	Maximum score culture and	
	community:	40

Leisure and open spaces

3.34 A key aspect of the NPPF's principles of sustainable development is to support the provision of social and environmental benefits to the community. Paragraph 8 of the NPPF states local authorities should foster "well-designed, beautiful and safe places, with accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities' health, social and cultural well-being". From an environmental perspective the NPPF also highlights the importance of contributing towards protecting and enhancing "our natural, built and historic environment, including making effective use of land, improving biodiversity, using natural resources prudently".

Indoor and outdoor sports

3.35 Access to indoor and outdoor sports facilities is considered a key factor in the assessment of sustainable development and communities. Easy access to these facilities without the need to travel helps to foster a more active and healthy society. As such, the types of indoor and outdoor sports available in a settlement has been assessed, using data provided by Sports England's Active Places Power database and the Lichfield District Playing Pitch Strategy.

Open spaces

- 3.36 Paragraph 97 of the NPPF seeks to promote healthy and safe communities, setting out that 'to provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning policies and decisions should plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential environments.'
- 3.37 The variety of open and green spaces within a settlement is a critical indicator of the community's quality of life, environmental health and recreational opportunities. These spaces, categorised using the following typologies from the Open Spaces Assessment:
 - Natural and semi-natural greenspaces: These areas, such as woodlands, meadows and wetlands, provide habitats for wildlife, support biodiversity and offer residents opportunities for nature-based recreation and relaxation.
 - Amenity greenspace: These are well-maintained areas such as parks, gardens and landscaped spaces, which enhance the aesthetic appeal of a settlement and provide venues for casual recreation and social interaction.
 - Green corridors: Pathways, trails and linear parks that connect different parts of the settlement facilitate walking, cycling and wildlife movement, promoting sustainable transportation and environmental connectivity.
 - Provision for children and young people: Playgrounds, equipped play areas and skate parks
 provide safe and engaging environments for physical activity and social interaction for
 younger residents.

- Civic spaces: plazas, town squares and public gathering areas serve as focal points for community events, socialising and cultural activities, enhancing civic pride and community engagement.
- Allotments: Allotment plots offer residents the opportunity to grow their own food, promoting sustainable living, healthy eating and a sense of community.
- Cemeteries and churchyards: These spaces offer quiet, reflective areas that honour the community's heritage and provide green spaces that contribute to the overall tranquillity and greenery of the settlement.
- Water-based recreation: Lakes, rivers and ponds support activities such as boating, fishing
 and wildlife observation, offering residents diverse recreational opportunities and enhancing
 the scenic value of the area.

Leisure and open space scoring

Table 5: Leisure and open spaces scoring

Leisure and open spaces	Scoring	
	8 or more types of	
Indoor sports present in settlement	indoor sports	10
Fitness gym, indoor bowls, sports hall, netball courts, squash courts	5,	
gymnastics hall,	6 to 7	8
swimming pool, indoor tennis, ice rink	4 to 5	6
	2 to 3	4
	1 type	2
	No indoor sports	0
Outdoor sports present in settlement	10 or more types	10
Football, rugby union, hockey, cricket, bowls, tennis, outdoor gym,		
artificial pitches,	7 to 9	8
outdoor netball courts, BMX track, golf course, skate park.	5 to 6	6
	2 to 4	4
	1 type	2
	No outdoor sports	
	present	0
Types of open/green spaces in settlement	8 or more types	10
Uses typology from Open Spaces Assessment: Natural and semi		
natural greenspaces,	6 to 7 types	8
Amenity greenspace, green corridors, children and young person's		
provision, civic spaces, allotments, cemeteries and churchyards,		
water based recreation	4 to 5 types	6
	2 to 3 types	4
	1 type	2
	0 types	0
	Maximum score	
	leisure and open	
	spaces	30

Employment

3.38 The travel data prepared by the Department for Transport identifies that commuting journeys account for the second largest number of trips per person (**Appendix A**). As such providing residents with access to employment opportunities within or near their communities enhances the sustainability of the settlement.

3.39 Lichfield district has a high rate of out commuting when compared to other districts in the county, this is no surprise given the district's location on the edge of the West Midlands conurbation. Paragraph 110 of the NPPF states that planning policies should support an appropriate mix of uses across an area and within larger scale sites to minimise the number and length of journeys needed for employment for amongst other reasons. Therefore, where a settlement would have access by sustainable means of transport to other centres which offer employment opportunities this will be recorded through this study.

Time taken to nearest employment area

- 3.40 A settlement will be considered to have good access to employment locations if there is an allocated existing employment site within or adjacent to the settlement; this is the case for Lichfield, Burntwood, Fradley, Fazeley, Shenstone and Armitage.
- 3.41 For this indicator, the travel time is measured from the centre of the settlement to the nearest allocated employment site at peak commuting hours (between 8am and 9am).
 Shorter travel times receive higher points, reflecting better accessibility and connectivity. If a settlement contains an allocated employment site it is awarded maximum points.

Distance travelled to work

- 3.42 Paragraph 109 of the NPPF promotes the accessibility of locations and limiting the need to travel. As such, this study has also looked at the travel to work distances of residents within each settlement. This metric, measured as the percentage of employed individuals aged 16 years or over, provides insight into commuting patterns and the proximity of employment opportunities. It is important to note that the data was collected from the 2021 Census, which is presented at the parish level. In many cases, the settlement boundary does not align precisely with the parish boundary.
- 3.43 It is also important to note that the data was collected during the COVID-19 pandemic, a period that saw significant changes in work patterns, including increased remote working. Therefore, there is potential that this data may not fully reflect current or post-pandemic commuting trends.
- 3.44 For this indicator, points were awarded based on the predominant commuting distance category that most residents fall within.

Employment scoring

Table 6: Employment scoring

Employment	Scoring	
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)	Works mainly from home	10
Data taken from Census 2021 (parish level data). Points received for whichever indicator most residents fall	Less than 10km away	8
within.	10km to less than 30km	6
	30km and over	4
	Other	2
	No data available	0
Time taken to nearest employment area from settlement	Employment area within the	
by car (measured at 8:30am during peak hours).	settlement	10

Employment	Scoring	
	Employment area accessible within	,
	1- 5 minutes of settlement	8
	Employment area accessible within	
	6 -10 minute of settlement	6
	Employment area accessible within	
	11- 15 minutes of settlement	4
	Employment area within 16 - 29	
	minutes of settlement	2
	Employment area more than 30	
	minutes from settlement	0
	Maximum score employment:	20

Transport

- 3.45 Residents within the district use the higher order services and facilities which are in larger settlements outside of the district. High order services include services such as an airport, leisure centre or large furniture store. For example, residents of Fazeley will use the services and facilities of neighbouring Tamworth. Therefore, accessing these higher order services by public transport is important to ensure that residents can access key services and facilities in a sustainable manner.
- 3.46 Paragraph 109 of the NPPF highlights the importance of focusing development at locations which can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and offering a genuine choice of transport modes.

Bus services

- 3.47 The number of weekday bus services in a settlement is a critical indicator of public transportation accessibility and convenience for residents. This measure highlights the availability and frequency of bus services that residents can rely on for their daily commutes, errands and other activities.
- 3.48 Availability of weekend bus services enables residents to engage in leisure and recreational activities, visit friends and family and participate in community events. This enhances the overall quality of life and well-being.
- 3.49 For both indicators, points are awarded based on the number of bus services available. Higher points reflect better bus service coverage, indicating a well-connected and accessible settlement⁷.

Railway stations

- 3.50 A railway station within the settlement provides direct access to regional and national rail networks, significantly enhancing connectivity for residents. This facilitates easy commuting to nearby cities and towns for work, education and leisure.
- 3.51 For this indicator, points are awarded based on the presence and proximity of a railway station. Maximum points are given to settlements with a railway station within the settlement, 5 points for stations within 3 miles and zero points for no nearby station⁸.

-

⁷ Source: Staffordshire County Council – Lichfield and Burntwood buses

⁸ Source: Google Maps, National Rail

Access to primary road network

3.52 Quick access to the primary road network ensures that residents can efficiently travel to nearby towns, cities and key destinations. This enhances the overall connectivity of the settlement⁹.

Transport Scoring

Table 7: Transport scoring

Transport	Scoring	
Number of weekday bus services (not including		
dedicated school/college services)	More than 8	10
	6 to 7	8
	4 to 5	6
	2 to 3	4
	1	2
	No weekday bus service	0
Number of weekend bus services	More than 8	10
	6 to 7	8
	4 to 5	6
	2 to 3	4
	1	2
	No weekend bus service	0
Presence of railway station	Railway station in settlement	10
	Railway station within 3 miles	5
	No railway station present	0
Time taken to primary road network by car	1 to 2 minutes	10
Measured from the centre of a settlement to the junction of the nearest identified primary A road during		
peak hours (8am - 9am)	3 to 4 minutes	8
	5 to 6 minutes	6
	7 to 8 minutes	4
	9 to 10 minutes	2
Average travel time to work by car in West Midlands		
region was 23 minutes in 2022	More than 11 minutes	0
	Maximum score transport:	40

Retail and Services

3.53 Paragraph 88d of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions enable "the retention and development of accessible local services and community facilities, such as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship". This section looks specifically at the retail offer and services that settlements can provide for their residents considering the current health of the high street, wider retail offer and key requirements that combine to create a sustainable settlement.

_

⁹ Source: Google Maps

Financial services

- 3.54 The presence of banks and financial services¹⁰ on the high street helps to reduce the inequality gap for those on low incomes, those with disabilities and the elderly by providing easy access and advice to finance and financial advice.
- 3.55 Post offices offer a wide range of services, including post handling, bill payments and access to government services. Their presence is particularly important in rural areas, providing a crucial link to essential services. In areas without a physical post office, a mobile post office ensures that residents still have access to essential postal services. This is vital for maintaining connectivity and access to important services¹¹.
- 3.56 Cash machines (ATMs) provide residents with 24/7 access to cash withdrawal services, enabling financial transactions and day-to-day purchases. This is especially important in areas where bank branches may have limited hours¹².
- 3.57 For this indicator, points are awarded based on the presence and type of financial services available within the settlement. Higher points are given for settlements with a bank/building society, physical post office and cash machines, while lower points are allocated to those relying on mobile post offices or lacking post office services altogether.

Supermarkets and convenience stores

- 3.58 The Department for Transport travel data (**Appendix A**) identifies accessing shopping destinations as the largest cause for trip generation and accounted for around 151 trips on average per person in 2022. Access to supermarkets and convenience stores are increasingly important to ensure that residents can meet their regular shopping needs. This is becoming increasingly important as our shopping habits change with more people nationally choosing to shop several times a week rather than undertaking one large shop. Where there is limited or no access to either a supermarket or a convenience store then residents may need to undertake numerous trips out of the settlement to fulfil their shopping needs, greatly increasing the number of car journeys.
- 3.59 To identify convenience stores within a settlement, the Governments <u>Business rates: find a property search tool</u> was used to categorise the stores into the following types:
 - Hypermarkets/superstores (over 2500m²).
 - Large food stores (750 2500m²).
 - Small convenience store e.g., Newsagent, convenience store, express/metro shop, corner shop etc.
 - Single themed store e.g., butcher, bakery.

Non-convenience stores

3.60 Non-convenience stores¹³ are classified as any shop or retail outlet that is not a convenience store, supermarket or single-themed convenience store (such as a butchers). A diverse retail offer can contribute to the social well-being of local communities, act as a driver for tourism

¹⁰ Source: HMRC – Find a Property, Maps

¹¹ Source: Post Office – Branch finder

¹² Source: Link ATM finder

¹³ Source: Google Maps, HMRC – Find a Property

by making centres more attractive and contributes to urban regeneration and the vitality and viability of town centres. As such, it is considered that this indicator meets paragraph 88d of the NPPF by reflecting the availability of accessible local services such as local shops.

Restaurants, cafes and takeaways

3.61 Cafés, restaurants and takeaways¹⁴ contribute toward the creation of sustainable settlements by providing both a daytime and an evening service to residents; stimulating the evening economy and expanding the local job offer. Extending the offer available to residents also reduces the need to travel for social interaction which is especially important for those with no access to private or public transport, the elderly and those with disabilities who may find travel difficult. It is considered that the indicator reflects the requirements of paragraph 8 of the NPPF which notes that sustainable developments support communities' health, social and cultural well-being.

Retail and services scoring

Table 8: Retail and services scoring

Retail and services	Scoring	
Bank/building society/post office	Presence of bank/building society	4
Add together points for each identified service	Presence of post office	3
	Presence of cash machine	3
	Presence of mobile post office (if no	
	physical post office)	1
	No post office service	0
Convenience store	Presence of hypermarket/superstore	4
Add together the points for each identified store type.	Presence of large food store	3
	Presence of small convenience store	2
	Presence of single themed store	1
	No convenience store present	0
Number of non-convenience stores	20 plus	10
	15 to 19	8
	10 to 14	6
	5 to 9	4
	1 to 4	2
	No non-food stores present	0
Number of restaurants, cafes and takeaways in		
settlement	16 or more outlets	10
	11 to 15	8
	6 to 10	6
	3 to 5	4
	1 to 2	2
	No outlets	0
	Maximum score retail and services:	40

26

¹⁴ Google Maps, HMRC – Find a Property

4. Settlement study results

- 8.1 Each settlement was assessed using the approach detailed in the methodology set out at section 3. A desk top analysis was used along with local knowledge and field visits to settlements to understand the level and range of services available in each settlement.
- 8.2 The full assessments which identified the services and facilities within each settlement are set out at Appendix C. This details the full range of services and settlements identified within and accessible to each settlement.
- 8.3 Once the services and facilities had been identified for each settlement this was assessed using the criteria approach set out within the methodology. The overall scores per indicator for each settlement are set out in detail at Appendix B. The total score available is **240** which is broken down as follows:
 - Education 30
 - Health 40
 - Culture and community 40
 - Leisure and Open Spaces 30
 - Employment 20
 - Transport 40
 - Retail and services 40
- 8.4 Table 9 summarises the settlement assessments using the scoring criteria set out in the methodology.

Table 9: Comparative settlement scoring

Settlement	Total	2024 Ranking	2020 Ranking	Change in ranking
Lichfield City	222	1	1	→
Burntwood	184	2	2	→
Shenstone	121	3	3	→
Fazeley, Mile Oak and Bonehill	120	4	5	1
Little Aston	104	5	4	V
Armitage with Handsacre	96	6	6	→
Fradley	95	7	8	1
Alrewas	93	8	7	↓
Whittington	92	9	9	→
Hopwas	85	10	10	→
Stonnall	81	11	11	→
Kings Bromley	73	12	12	→
Drayton Bassett	72	13	19	1
Hill Ridware	68	14	14	→

Settlement	Total	2024 Ranking	2020 Ranking	Change in ranking
Colton	58	15	17	1
Elford	56	16	16	→
Longdon	54	17	13	4
Hammerwich ¹⁵	52	18	N/A	N/A
Clifton Campville	51	19	18	4
Wigginton	47	20	20	→
Upper Longdon	43	21	23	1
Edingale	43	22	15	4
Harlaston	39	23	21	4
Hamstall Ridware	38	24	22	↓

8.5 The overall scoring highlights the significant variation in the availability and accessibility of services and facilities across the district's settlements. The settlements can generally be grouped based on similar scores, which helps in identifying a settlement hierarchy according to the level of accessible services and facilities. This hierarchy is detailed in section 8 of this study.

 15 Newly added in 2024. Shifts rankings below by 1.

6. Settlement infrastructure capacity

- 6.1 For infrastructure types deemed critical in serving the district's needs, an additional assessment has been conducted to determine if there is a specific impact on growth potential at the settlement level. As the new local plan progresses, this section will be updated to reflect the ongoing discussions with local infrastructure providers and the potential impact of preferred growth options. The infrastructure types considered in this section are as follows:
 - Primary education.
 - Secondary education.
 - Primary and secondary healthcare.
 - Transport.

Education

6.2 Schools are considered a type of infrastructure that is critical to the sustainability of a settlement. The provision (or lack) of school provision within a settlement is likely to be a key factor in determining the quantum of growth that can be accommodated within it. Table 10 details the education scoring for each settlement.

Table 10: Education scores by settlement

Settlement	Education score (Max score = 30)
Lichfield	30
Burntwood	30
Fazeley, Mile Oak, Bonehill	9
Little Aston	9
Armitage with Handsacre	9
Fradley	9
Whittington	7
Alrewas	7
Shenstone	7
Drayton Bassett	7
Hill Ridware	7
Kings Bromley	7
Stonnall	5
Hopwas	5
Longdon	5
Elford	5
Clifton Campville	5
Edingale	5
Colton	4
Wigginton	4
Upper Longdon	3
Harlaston	3

Settlement	Education score (Max score = 30)
Hammerwich	0
Hamstall Ridware	0

School capacity in Lichfield district

- 6.3 Data has been obtained from the Government's <u>Schools Information Service</u> and from <u>Staffordshire County Council</u> in order to understand the available level of capacity within each of the district's schools, based on the most up-to-date available data (end of 2022/23 academic year).
- 6.4 There are a total of 47 schools across the district, comprised of:
 - 41 state primary schools.
 - 5 state secondary schools.
 - 1 independent (private) school which is a 'through school' (i.e., serving children from primary through to secondary ages).
- 6.5 There are primary schools located in all settlements except for Upper Longdon,
 Hammerwich, Harlaston and Hamstall Ridware, however these settlements fall within the
 catchment of other primary schools less than 2 miles away.
- There are five secondary schools located in Lichfield and Burntwood with a wide-ranging catchment area. All remaining settlements, except for Colton, Wigginton, Hammerwich and Hamstall Ridware have public transport access to their catchment secondary school.
- 6.7 Table 11 sets out the current level of primary and secondary education provision in the district, including capacity and number of pupils currently on roll (as of 2022/23). The table also sets out where a school has had to refuse a school place application over the previous 5 years, which helps to build up a geographical picture of capacity issues across the district.

Table 11: Capacity of schools in Lichfield District

	Pupils				Refus	ed applic	ations			
Settlement	Age Group	Name	Capacity	on roll 2023	%	20/21	21/22	22/23	23/24	24/25
Lichfield	Primary	Willows Primary School	420	377	90%	-	6	-	-	-
Lichfield	Primary	Chadsmead Primary Academy	420	248	59%	-	-	-	-	-
Lichfield	Primary	St Peters & St Pauls Primary	140	130	93%	-	-	-	3	-
Lichfield	Primary	St Chads CofE Primary School	210	220	105%	-	-	-	-	-
Lichfield	Primary	Scotch Orchard Primary School	210	180	86%	-	-	-	-	-
Lichfield	Primary	St Michaels CofE Primary School	420	425	101%	-	-	-	-	-
Lichfield	Primary	St Joseph's RC Primary School	210	212	101%	5	2	3	-	-
Lichfield	Primary	Five Spires Academy	210	230	110%	3	-	10	-	3
Lichfield	Primary	Christ Church CofE Primary School	420	418	100%	10	-	-	7	-
Lichfield	Primary	Anna Seward Primary School (opened Sept 2023)	210	26	12%	-	-	-	-	23
Lichfield	Primary	Streethay Primary School (opened Sept 2019)	210	191	91%	9	4	23	8	15
Lichfield	Primary	Charnwood Primary Academy	210	232	110%	-	6	4	-	-
Lichfield	All through	Lichfield Cathedral School (2-18 yrs)	616	535	87%	-	-	-	-	-
Lichfield	Secondary	King Edward VI School	1395	1607	115%	32	27	100	145	84
Lichfield	Secondary	Friary School	1250	1228	98%	51	50	102	103	82
Lichfield	Secondary	Netherstowe School	929	666	72%	-	-	-	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	Chase Terrace Primary School	315	280	89%	-	-	-	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	St Joseph & St Theresa Catholic Primary	210	209	100%	-	15	-	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	Holly Grove Primary Academy	315	277	88%	-	-	-	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	Springhill Primary Academy	210	193	92%	-	2	-	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	Boney Hay Primary Academy	210	189	90%	-	-	6	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	Ridgeway Primary Academy	420	406	97%	-	7	-	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	Highfields Primary Academy	254	204	80%	-	4	9	-	-
Burntwood	Primary	Fulfen Primary School	420	409	97%	-	3	8	3	9

				Pupils			Refus	ed applica	ations	I
Settlement	Age Group	Name	Capacity	on roll 2023	%	20/21	21/22	22/23	23/24	24/25
Burntwood	Secondary	Chase Terrace Academy	1411	1309	93%	-	-	-	9	-
Burntwood	Secondary	Erasmus Darwin Academy	1141	1084	95%	77	110	59	77	103
Shenstone	Primary	Greysbrooke Primary School	210	203	97%	-	7	-	18	-
Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill	Primary	Millfield Primary School	420	385	92%	-	-	-	-	-
Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill	Primary	Longwood Primary School	210	168	80%	-	-	-	1	-
Little Aston	Primary	Little Aston Primary Academy	230	245	107%	4	-	-	3	-
Armitage with Handsacre	Primary	The Croft Primary School	210	198	94%	-	-	3	-	-
Armitage with Handsacre	Primary	Hayes Meadow Primary School	210	171	81%	-	-	-	6	4
Fradley	Primary	St Stephens Primary School	360	289	80%	-	-	-	-	-
Fradley	Primary	Fradley Park Primary & Nursery (opened September 2022)	236	53	22%	-	-	-	-	-
Alrewas	Primary	All Saints Church of England Primary School	296	181	61%	-	-	-	-	-
Whittington	Primary	Whittington Primary and Nursery School	336	307	91%	-	1	-	-	-
Hopwas	Primary	Thomas Barnes Primary School	105	106	101%	12	13	10	6	6
Stonnall	Primary	St Peters Church of England Primary Academy	147	140	95%	-	-	-	-	-
Kings Bromley	Primary	Richard Cross Primary School	120	111	93%	-	9	-	-	4
Drayton Bassett	Primary	Manor Primary Academy	113	80	71%	-	-	-	-	-
Hill Ridware	Primary	Henry Chadwick Primary School	118	103	87%	4	-	-	-	-
Colton	Primary	The St Mary's CofE Primary School	120	92	77%	-	-	-	-	-
Longdon	Primary	St James CE Primary Academy	105	102	97%	-	6	2	-	-
Elford	Primary	The Howard Primary School	84	61	73%	-	-	-	-	-
Clifton Campville	Primary	St Andrew's CofE Primary School	64	55	86%	-	-	-		-

							Refuse	ed applica	ations	
Settlement	Age Group	Name	Capacity	Pupils on roll 2023	%	20/21	21/22	22/23	23/24	24/25
Wigginton	Primary	St Leonard's CofE (A) Primary School	120	131	109%	17	-	1	5	-
Edingale	Primary	Mary Howard CofE Primary School	63	49	78%	-	-	-	-	-

- Table 12 illustrates that a number of primary schools within the district's rural settlements currently have some capacity to accommodate additional pupils. This includes All Saints CofE Primary School in Alrewas which operates at 61% of its capacity; as well as primary schools in Drayton Bassett, Elford, Colton and Edingale, which all operate under 80% capacity.
- 6.9 There are also newly opened primary schools in Lichfield and Fradley which have not yet reached their full capacity, this is because new schools are usually filled from their first year upwards meaning it takes several years for the school to have pupils in all year groups. In addition, Netherstowe Secondary School in Lichfield is currently operating at 72% capacity.
- 6.10 There are a number of schools which are currently operating at capacity or over capacity.

 The most overcrowded schools in the district are:
 - King Edward VI Secondary School, Lichfield (115%).
 - Charnwood Primary Academy, Lichfield (110%).
 - Five Spires Academy, Lichfield (110%).
 - St Leonards CofE (A) Primary School, Wigginton (109%).
 - Little Aston Primary Academy, Little Aston (107%).
 - St Chads CofE Primary School, Lichfield (105%).
- 6.11 Furthermore, the following schools are at or near capacity:
 - St Michaels CofE Primary School, Lichfield (101%).
 - St Joseph's RC Primary School, Lichfield (101%).
 - Thomas Barnes Primary School, Hopwas (101%).
 - Christ Church CofE Primary School, Lichfield (100%).
 - St Joseph & St Theresa Catholic Primary School (100%).
- 6.12 It is notable that the majority of overcrowded or at capacity primary schools are within Lichfield city. However, Lichfield's secondary schools are, with the exception of King Edward VI School, operating at or under capacity, particularly Netherstowe School which is operating at 72% capacity.
- 6.13 It is important to consider that capacity figures reflect a single point in time and published figures may not be fully representative of actual capacity. Appropriate caution should therefore be applied when utilising capacity figures. This study only provides an initial assessment of provision and capacity for the purposes of establishing a baseline.
- 6.14 The <u>schools' admissions data</u> published by Staffordshire County Council provides an indicator of capacity trends across time. Table 11 shows where schools have been oversubscribed over the last 5 years, resulting in applications being refused. The following schools have been consistently oversubscribed over the last 5 years:
 - Streethay Primary Academy, Streethay.
 - King Edward VI Secondary School, Lichfield.
 - The Friary School, Lichfield.

- Erasmus Darwin Secondary School, Burntwood¹⁶.
- Thomas Barnes Primary School, Hopwas.
- 6.15 In addition, the following schools have been oversubscribed at least 3 years out of the last 5 years:
 - St Joseph's RC Primary School, Lichfield.
 - Five Spires Primary School, Lichfield.
 - Fulfen Primary School, Burntwood.
 - St Leonards Primary School, Wigginton.

Future primary and secondary education provision

- 6.16 Looking forward, Staffordshire County Council have indicated several planned school improvements. These include:
 - St. Johns Grange, Lichfield new primary school
 - A 2-form entry (FE) (420 place) primary school is being delivered for September 2025 but will operate as a 1FE (210 place) primary school until the requirement for further places is identified after the five-year period.
 - Fradley park primary and nursery school
 - This new school has the capability to be expanded to 2FE (420 places). The
 expansion will be delivered in line with the growth in pupil numbers in Fradley from
 further committed housing development. Delivery could be from September 2026.
 - Rugeley power station site new all-through school
 - The school will initially operate with 1FE (30 places per year group- 210 places in total) of primary provision which will be increased to 2FE (60 places per year group-420 places in total), in the future, in line with demand for additional places from the new housing on the former Power Station site. At secondary level it will offer 5FE (150 places per year 750 places in total) of provision.
 - Watery Lane, Lichfield new primary school
 - o 1 FE primary school. Opening date to be confirmed.
 - Arkall Farm, Tamworth new primary School
 - o 1FE primary school. Opening date to be confirmed.
- 6.17 Whilst these schemes will help to address some of the capacity issues identified in Table 11, it should be noted that the above new schools are being delivered to accommodate demand arising from new development and it is unlikely that they will have capacity to accommodate pupils from outside their catchment area.

¹⁶ It is important to note that Erasmus Darwin Academy does not have a catchment area and will naturally attract a larger number of applications across a wider area.

Education summary

- There are primary and secondary education capacity constraints in Lichfield, particularly
 at Streethay Primary Academy, Five Spires Academy, King Edward VI School and Friary
 School, indicating capacity issues to the south and east of the city, likely a result of
 recent housing growth in these areas.
- There are secondary education capacity constraints at Erasmus Darwin Academy in Burntwood, however this school does not currently have a catchment area and will therefore naturally attract a higher number of applications for school places.
 Additionally, Fulfen Primary School, located to the east of Burntwood has been oversubscribed for the past four years.
- There are also primary education constraints in Hopwas and Wigginton, which results in families having to travel to nearby Tamworth to access primary education provision.
- Upper Longdon, Hammerwich, Harlaston and Hamstall Ridware do not have a primary school within their settlement boundary. However, these settlements fall within the catchment of other primary schools less than 2 miles away.
- Colton, Wigginton, Hammerwich and Hamstall Ridware currently have no public transport access to nearby secondary schools.
- There are a number of new primary schools planned in Lichfield, Fradley, Arkall Farm and a new all through school at the former Rugeley Power Station.

Health

- 6.18 This section considers the capacity of healthcare and emergency service provision within Lichfield district. Settlements have been scored based on their access to the following types of health infrastructure:
 - Primary healthcare (GP surgeries, pharmacists, dentists, opticians).
 - Secondary healthcare (Hospitals).
- 6.19 Table 12 outlines the overall health scores, derived from the settlement hierarchy study methodology described in Section 3. The results indicate that Lichfield and Burntwood benefit from a larger range of healthcare services within their settlements, whereas the smaller villages, particularly those in the eastern part of the district, have limited access to healthcare provision.

Table 12: Health provision scores by settlement

Settlement	Health Score (Max score = 40)
Lichfield	34
Burntwood	28
Fazeley, Mile Oak, Bonehill	22
Little Aston	18
Armitage with Handsacre	18
Whittington	18
Alrewas	18
Shenstone	18
Fradley	16

Settlement	Health Score (Max score = 40)
Drayton Bassett	16
Hill Ridware	14
Hammerwich	14
Stonnall	14
Upper Longdon	14
Hopwas	13
Longdon	12
Colton	12
Wigginton	12
Hamstall Ridware	12
Kings Bromley	10
Elford	10
Clifton Campville	8
Edingale	8
Harlaston	8

Primary Healthcare

- 6.20 There are currently 9 GP surgeries within the district. These are located in the district's key urban areas of Lichfield and Burntwood and in most of the larger villages with the exception of Fradley and Little Aston.
- 6.21 There are no GP surgeries in any of the district's other rural settlements, where residents are reliant on travelling to other settlements for primary healthcare provision. Table 13 below provides a list of all GP surgeries with catchment areas that serve Lichfield district.

Table 13: GP surgeries with catchment areas covering Lichfield District

Surgery name	Settlements served	No of patients (June 2024)	Opening hours	CQC rating	Appoint ments per 1,000 patients (May 2024)	GP Patient Survey 2023 result (% describing overall experience as good)	Notes
Burntwood Health and Wellbeing Centre	Burntwood	n/a	CLOSED – March 2024	n/a	n/a	n/a	Burntwood North Health Centre to open in 2025
Aelfgar Surgery, Rugeley	Colton, Armitage with Handsacre	6,775	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	579.7	95%	
Abbots Bromley Surgery	Colton, Hill Ridware, Hamstall Ridware	3,791	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	561.5	94%	
Brereton Surgery	Upper Longdon	5,496	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	554.9	91%	
Blackwood Health Centre, Streetly	Little Aston	4,023	Monday to Friday 8:30am-6:30pm	Good	371.3	88%	
The Oaks Medical Centre	Little Aston	14,653	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	485.7	84%	
Northgate Medical Centre, Aldridge	Stonnall	10,089	Monday to Friday 8am – 6:30pm	Good	652	83%	
Streets Corner Surgery, Walsall Wood	Stonnall	5,717	Monday to Friday 8am – 6:30pm	Good	443.5	80%	
Darwin Medical Centre (Inc. Burntwood and Lichfield branches)	Burntwood & Lichfield	23,100	Burntwood: Mon- Fri – 8am-6:30pm Lichfield: Mon- Fri 8am-6:30pm	Good	508.7	78%	Darwin Medical Centre moved into newly built Greenwood Health Centre in 2021.
Alrewas Surgery	Alrewas, Fradley, Harlaston, Edingale, Elford, Kings Bromley (part)	7,201	Monday to Friday 8:15am – 5:45pm	Good	540.4	76%	
Salters Meadow Health Centre	Burntwood	11,926	Monday to Friday 8am – 6:30pm	Good	452.9	71%	

Surgery name	Settlements served	No of patients (June 2024)	Opening hours	CQC rating	Appoint ments per 1,000 patients (May 2024)	GP Patient Survey 2023 result (% describing overall experience as good)	Notes
Westgate Practice (including Shenstone Branch)	Lichfield, Shenstone, Stonnall, Whittington, Fradley	30,830	8am – 6:30pm Monday to Friday	Good	445	70%	Received £120k of CIL funding to deliver additional clinical rooms in 2019 with work completed in 2020.
Rawnsley Surgery, Cannock	Burntwood (part)	4,380	Monday to Friday 8am – 6:30pm	Good	383.6	70%	
Riverside Surgery, Tamworth	Hopwas, Fazeley, Drayton Bassett, Wigginton, Whittington, Harlaston, Elford, Lichfield (part), Fradley (part)	2,358	Monday to Friday 8am – 6pm (with 1 hour lunch break)	Good	334.9	70%	
Hollies Practice, Tamworth	Fazeley, Wigginton, Elford, Harlaston, Edingale	15,442	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	408.2	70%	
Yoxall Surgery	Alrewas, Fradley, Armitage with Handsacre, Kings Bromley, Hill Ridware, Hamstall Ridware, Mavesyn Ridware	4,606	Monday to Friday 8am-6:00pm	Good	311.1	69%	
Peel Medical Practice, Tamworth	Fazeley, Drayton Bassett, Wigginton, Elford, Harlaston, Clifton Campville (part)	14,511	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	623.2	68%	
Aldergate Medical Practice, Tamworth	Wigginton, Fazeley	13,994	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	474.4	68%	
Measham Medical Unit	Clifton Campville	15,560	Monday to Friday 7:30am to 6pm	Good	582.5	66%	
Horsefair Practice, Rugeley	Colton, Armitage with Handsacre, Upper Longdon, Longdon	12,055	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Not yet rated	603.5	65%	
Langton Medical Group (Including Lichfield, Boney Hay branch and Whittington Branch)	Lichfield, Burntwood, Whittington, Upper Longdon, Armitage with Handsacre (part), Longdon, Fradley, Elford	23,000	Lichfield 8am- 6:30pm Mon-Fri Burntwood: 8am- 1pm Mon-Fri Whittington 8am- 12:30pm Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri	Good	403.3	60%	

Surgery name	Settlements served	No of patients (June 2024)	Opening hours	CQC rating	Appoint ments per 1,000 patients (May 2024)	GP Patient Survey 2023 result (% describing overall experience as good)	Notes
Sutton Coldfield Group Practice	Little Aston	53,150	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	501.7	56%	
Hazeldene House Surgery, Stafford	Colton	7,979	Monday to Friday 8am to 6:30pm with 1 hour lunch break	Good	459.2	54%	
Sandy Lane Surgery, Rugeley	Upper Longdon	9,482	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Requires improve ment	589.6	52%	
Laurel House Surgery, Tamworth (inc. Fazeley branch)	Fazeley, Hopwas, Drayton Bassett, Wigginton	12,713	Monday to Friday 8am – 6:30pm	Good	419.6	46%	
Kirpal Medical Practice, Handsworth	Drayton Bassett, Little Aston	5,490	Monday to Friday 8am-6:30pm	Good	437	45%	

- 6.22 There is complete GP coverage for all of the district's settlements, with a significant degree of catchment area overlap, particularly in Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill, Burntwood and the villages neighbouring Rugeley. This allows patients a significant degree of choice over which surgery to register with. Inevitably, this results in surgeries which are under greater pressure than others. However, because surgeries are only able to stop registering new patients in exceptional circumstances, there is no objective means by which to comment on how constrained individual surgeries are.
- 6.23 One measure of surgeries ability to cope is its Care Quality Commission (CQC) Rating, set out in Table 13 above. These are based upon five metrics to establish the performance of surgeries and the extent to which they are meeting patient expectations the safety of their care and the effectiveness of their care, the extent to which staff show care, the responsiveness of services and the quality of leadership and management.
- 6.24 The majority of the district's GP surgeries have been rated "good" by the CQC on their most recent inspection, with only Sandy Lane Surgery in Rugeley (outside of the district but with a catchment area that incorporates Upper Longdon) requiring improvement. No surgeries within the district are rated as inadequate.
- 6.25 In addition to this, the annual <u>GP Patient Survey</u> is a useful tool to assess patients' experience of healthcare services provided by GP practices. Table 13 above sets out the percentage of patients who reported that their overall experience of their GP practice was 'good'. It is worth noting that the overall national average for this metric was 71%. GP Practices that scored below this figure have been highlighted in red in Table 13. Notably, all of the GP surgeries located within Lichfield district the national average with the exception of Langton Medical Practice (60%) and Westgate Practice (70%). Both these practices have their main surgery based in Lichfield. This would suggest that there are potentially some capacity issues in relation to GP and primary healthcare provision in Lichfield city.

Secondary healthcare

- 6.26 There are 3 hospitals in Lichfield district, although none of these hospitals have an accident and emergency (A&E) epartment. These are:
 - Samuel Johnson Hospital, Lichfield community hospital.
 - Sir Robert Peel Hospital, Mile Oak community hospital.
 - Spire Little Aston Hospital private hospital.
- 6.27 For accident and emergency healthcare needs, residents need to travel to hospitals outside the district. The main hospitals serving the district are:
 - Good Hope Hospital, Sutton Coldfield.
 - Burton Queens Hospital, Burton Upon Trent.
 - Manor Hospital, Walsall.
 - Stafford Hospital, Stafford.

- 6.28 Similar to primary healthcare, secondary healthcare providers can only stop accepting new patients under exceptional circumstances. As a result, there is no objective means to assess how constrained local secondary healthcare provision is. Ratings by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) serve as a proxy to gauge how well each Trust is coping with demand.
- 6.29 Samuel Johnson, Sir Robert Peel and Little Aston Spire Hospitals have all been rated as good by the CQC. However, Good Hope Hospital in Sutton Coldfield has been rated as inadequate for its medical care and emergency services and requires improvement for its maternity and surgery services. Burton Queens Hospital, Stafford Hospital and Manor Hospital in Walsall have all been rated as requiring improvement. This indicates that the local hospitals offering acute and emergency care are struggling to meet demand.

Healthcare summary

- There are GP practices located within the main centres of Lichfield and Burntwood and
 most of the larger villages with the exception of Little Aston and Fradley. However,
 Fradley residents have the choice of registering with Westgate Practice in Lichfield,
 Riverside Surgery in Tamworth, Alrewas Surgery, Langton Medical Group in Lichfield and
 Yoxall Surgery. Similarly, Little Aston residents can register with nearby Blackwood
 Health Centre, Kirpal Medical Practice and The Oaks Medical Centre.
- Villages in the east of the district scored poorly in the settlement study for healthcare access. This includes Elford, Edingale, Clifton Campville and Harlaston.
- All GP surgeries in Lichfield district scored 'Good' in their latest CQC inspection.
- Most of the GP surgeries located within Lichfield district scored above the national average of 71% in the latest GP Patient Survey, except for Langton Medical Practice (60%) and Westgate Practice (70%), indicating potential GP capacity issues in Lichfield city.
- A new Health Centre is to be delivered at Cherry Close in Burntwood in 2025, providing additional clinical capacity for Burntwood.
- There are no hospitals with A&E departments within the district. Local hospitals in neighbouring authorities with A&E departments are rated as requiring improvement or inadequate, indicating a potential secondary healthcare capacity issue within the region.

Transport

- 6.30 This section considers the capacity of transport provision within Lichfield district.

 Settlements have been scored based on their access to the following types of transport:
 - Weekday and weekend bus services.
 - Access to a railway station.
 - Access to the principal road network.
- 6.31 Table 14 sets out the transport scores for each settlement, derived from the methodology in Section 3.

Table 14: Transport scores by settlement

Settlement	Fransport score (Max score = 40)
Lichfield	34

Settlement	Transport score (Max score = 40)
Shenstone	24
Hopwas	21
Little Aston	19
Fazeley, Mile Oak, Bonehill	17
Whittington	17
Fradley	16
Stonnall	15
Kings Bromley	14
Drayton Bassett	13
Burntwood	12
Alrewas	12
Hill Ridware	10
Armitage with Handsacre	8
Hammerwich	8
Clifton Campville	6
Edingale	6
Colton	5
Wigginton	5
Elford	2
Harlaston	2
Upper Longdon	0
Longdon	0
Hamstall Ridware	0

- 6.32 Table 14 demonstrates that there is a wide variation in the scores, with Lichfield scoring highest and the smaller rural villages receiving lower scores. Burntwood received a modest score of 12 (out of 40) for transport, highlighting the relatively poor transport connectivity of the town relative to its population size and its ranking within the settlement hierarchy.
- 6.33 Settlements with a score of zero for transport links are Upper Longdon, Longdon and Hamstall Ridware, indicating poor accessibility in the northern rural part of the district.

Bus services

- 6.34 Transport linkages in rural areas are a vital component when considering the sustainability of a settlement. Good public transport links with higher tier centres allow residents to access services which may not be present within their own settlement.
- 6.35 Table 15 provides the scores for bus provision (not including term time school services) in each settlement, for both weekday and weekend services.

Table 15: Bus provision scores by settlement

Settlement	Weekday bus provision score (Max score = 10)	Weekend bus provision score (Max score = 10)
Lichfield	10	10
Little Aston	6	6
Burntwood	4	4
Shenstone	4	4
Armitage with Handsacre	4	4

Settlement	Weekday bus provision score (Max score = 10)	Weekend bus provision score (Max score = 10)
Fradley	4	4
Whittington	4	4
Hopwas	4	4
Fazeley, Mile Oak, Bonehill	2	2
Alrewas	2	2
Stonnall	2	2
Kings Bromley	2	2
Hill Ridware	2	2
Elford	2	0
Clifton Campville	2	0
Edingale	2	0
Drayton Bassett	0	0
Colton	0	0
Longdon	0	0
Wigginton	0	0
Upper Longdon	0	0
Harlaston	0	0
Hammerwich	0	0
Hamstall Ridware	0	0

- 6.36 There are eight settlements which do not have access to a bus service and have therefore scored zero. These are; Drayton Bassett, Colton, Longdon, Wigginton, Upper Longdon, Harlaston, Hammerwich and Hamstall Ridware.
- 6.37 In addition, Elford, Hammerwich, Clifton Campville and Edingale do not have access to bus services on the weekend. This reflects both the remoteness of these settlements and their low population size, factors which undoubtedly affect the viability of providing regular bus services to these destinations.
- 6.38 All settlements, with the exception of Colton, Wigginton, Hammerwich and Hamstall Ridware, are served by term time school transport services¹⁷, enabling children living in the settlement to travel by bus to their catchment secondary school.

Rail services

- 6.39 Railway provision is a critical component of settlement sustainability, impacting both the accessibility and economic viability of a settlement. This section will consider the current railway provision in the district and identify the gaps in provision.
- 6.40 There are four railway stations within Lichfield district, these are:
 - Lichfield Trent Valley: This station is served by two lines. The first is the Cross City Line, providing services to Sutton Coldfield, Birmingham, Redditch and Bromsgrove. It is also located on the West Coast Mainline, offering direct services to London Euston, Crewe, Liverpool, Tamworth, Stafford and Holyhead, amongst others.

¹⁷ Includes only publicly operated school bus services. The availability of privately operated school bus or minivan services has not been checked.

- Rugeley Trent Valley: Served by the West Coast Mainline and Chase Line which provides services to Walsall, Cannock and Birmingham.
- Lichfield City: Served by the Cross City Line.
- Shenstone: Served by the Cross City Line.
- 6.41 The following settlements benefit from the presence of a railway station:

Table 16: Settlements with the provision of a railway station

Settlement	Railway station	Railway Line
Lichfield	Lichfield City	Cross City
		West Coast Mainline
Lichfield	Lichfield Trent Valley	Cross City
Shenstone	Shenstone	Cross City

6.42 The following settlements in Table 17 are located within 3 miles of a railway station.

Table 17: Settlements within 3 miles of a railway station

Settlement	Railway station within 3 miles	Railway Line
Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill	Wilnecote	Cross Country Line
		providing services to Cardiff
		and Nottingham
Little Aston	Blake Street	Cross City – Lichfield to
		Bromsgrove
Whittington	Lichfield Trent Valley	West Coast Mainline –
		London to the North West
		& Cross City Line
Hopwas	Tamworth	West Coast Mainline and
		Cross Country Line
Stonnall	Shenstone	Cross City Line
Drayton Bassett	Wilnecote	Cross Country Line
Colton	Rugeley Trent Valley	West Coast Mainline &
		Chase Line
Wigginton	Tamworth	West Coast Mainline and
		Cross Country Line

- 6.43 The following settlements are located more than 3 miles from a railway station. This includes Burntwood which has a population of over 30,000 people.
 - Burntwood.
 - Armitage with Handsacre.
 - Fradley.
 - Alrewas.
 - Kings Bromley.
 - Hill Ridware.
 - Longdon.
 - Elford.

- Clifton Campville.
- Upper Longdon.
- Edingale.
- Hammerwich
- Harlaston; and
- Hamstall Ridware.

Highways

- 6.44 The district is served by the A5, A38, A5148 and M6 Toll; all of which are part of the Strategic Road Network (SRN). The SRN comprises motorways and major A roads which are at the core of the national transport system, providing strategic connections across the country.
- 6.45 The four SRN routes all connect at Wall Island, to the south of Lichfield; and can also be accessed via various junctions throughout the district.
- 6.46 The SRN routes are summarised below:
 - A5 Provides an east-west connection from London to Holyhead; with connectivity through urban areas in the Midlands including Hinckley, Atherstone, Tamworth, Lichfield, Burntwood, Brownhills, Cannock, Telford and Shrewsbury. Also provides links to the wider SRN including M42, A38, M5, M54, M1 and M6.
 - A38 Provides a north-south connection from Mansfield to Bodmin, including links through Derby, Burton upon Trent, Fradley, Lichfield, Sutton Coldfield, Birmingham and Worcester. Also provides links to the wider SRN including M1, A50, M5 and M6.
 - A1548 Provides a north-south connection between the A38 and Wall Island.
 - M6 Toll Connects the M6 junction 3a at the Coleshill Interchange with M6 Junction 11A at Wolverhampton.
- 6.47 These SRN routes are important nationally, making the district attractive to employers and supporting economic growth in the key employment areas in Lichfield city, Burntwood and Fradley. These routes also provide important local links as they connect the district to neighbouring centres such as Burton upon Trent, Derby, Sutton Coldfield, Tamworth and Birmingham, as well as national destinations further afield and connections to the wider SRN
- 6.48 In addition, the A5192 and A51 run through the district and are part of the Major Road Network (MRN), which forms a middle tier of the country's busiest and most economically local authority A roads. The A5192 runs along the northern edge of Lichfield and connects the A51 with the A38. The A51 links Lichfield to the north, including connections with Rugeley and Stone, as well as connecting to the A34 which links to Stoke on Trent, the M6 and A50.

Transport Summary

 Overall Lichfield City scored maximum points for transport accessibility as it benefits from regional and national rail services as well as a good level of regional bus connectivity.

- Burntwood, however received a modest score of 12 (out of 40) for transport, highlighting the relatively poor transport connectivity of the town relative to its population size and its ranking within the settlement hierarchy.
- Three settlements scored zero for transport links. These are Upper Longdon, Longdon and Hamstall Ridware, indicating poor accessibility in the northern rural part of the district.
- There are eight settlements which are not served by bus. These are Drayton Bassett, Colton, Longdon, Wigginton, Upper Longdon, Harlaston, Hammerwich and Hamstall Ridware. In addition, Elford, Clifton Campville and Edingale do not have access to bus services on the weekend.
- Lichfield district benefits from four railway stations, two in Lichfield City, one in Shenstone and one in Rugeley. These provide links to regional and national services, including fast commuter services to London, Birmingham and the north.
- All settlements, with the exception of Colton, Wigginton, Hammerwich and Hamstall Ridware, are served by term time school transport services, enabling children living in the settlement to travel by bus to their catchment secondary school.
- The following settlements are within 3 miles of a railway station: Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill, Little Aston, Whittington, Hopwas, Stonnall, Drayton Bassett, Colton and Wigginton.
- The following settlements are more than 3 miles from a railway station: Burntwood, Armitage with Handsacre, Fradley, Alrewas, Kings Bromley, Hill Ridware, Longdon, Elford, Clifton Campville, Upper Longdon, Edingale, Harlaston and Hamstall Ridware.
- The district is served by the A5, A38, A5148 and M6 Toll; all of which are part of the Strategic Road Network. In addition, the A5192 and A51 run through the district and are part of the Major Road Network.

7. Settlement infrastructure capacity - initial findings

- 7.1 The previous section of this report has set out the baseline levels of provision and implications for future growth the following critical infrastructure types:
 - Primary and secondary education.
 - Healthcare GP and hospital provision.
 - Public transport and highways.
- 7.2 Of these infrastructure types, there are several identified capacity constraints, these being:
 - A lack of capacity in a number of the district's primary and secondary schools, which
 is likely to limit the amount of housing able to come forward in some settlements
 without the provision of new or enlarged schools. This is particularly evident in
 Lichfield city, Burntwood, Hopwas and Wigginton.
 - Whilst there is little information available at this stage on fixed capacities for the
 district's primary health surgeries, many are constrained and likely to need
 expansion to accommodate growth. This is particularly evident in Lichfield City and
 Burntwood. In addition, there is currently no primary healthcare provision in Little
 Aston and Fradley.
 - Several rural settlements do not have access to a bus service, these being Drayton Bassett, Colton, Longdon, Wigginton, Upper Longdon, Harlaston, Hammerwich and Hamstall Ridware. Furthermore, Elford, Clifton Campville and Edingale do not have access to weekend bus services.
 - The district benefits from rail links to the West Coast Mainline, Cross City Line, Chase Line and Cross-Country lines. Lichfield in particular benefits from having two railway stations and direct services to London, Birmingham and the North-West. However, more than half of the district's settlements are located more than 3 miles from a railway station, including Burntwood which scores relatively low on transport links relative to its population size.
 - The district is served by the A5, A38, A5148 and M6 Toll; all of which are part of the SRN. These four links connect at Wall Island, but also have other junctions which can be accessed throughout the district. These SRN links provide connections to neighbouring urban centres such as Burton upon Trent, Derby, Sutton Coldfield, Tamworth and Birmingham, as well as national destinations further afield.
- 7.3 For all infrastructure types, it will be important to ensure that the emerging Local Plan includes suitable policies to ensure that the Council has means available to ensure the provision of that infrastructure and that necessary contributions to help to provide and fund it can be secured as far as possible.

8. Settlement hierarchy

- 8.1 Based upon the above settlement scoring and infrastructure capacity analysis, Table 18 sets out a settlement hierarchy based upon the accessible level of services and facilities for settlements. This identifies the most sustainable locations if it were based solely on their provision of existing facilities and accessibility to services. Table 10 also provides a summary of key infrastructure capacity issues for each settlement, as identified in sections 6 and 7 above.
- 8.2 This study does not seek to suggest the levels of growth which each level of the settlement hierarchy should accommodate. As this study acknowledges, services provision is not fixed and can evolve over time according to market forces or changing work and travel patterns.

Table 18: Settlement study hierarchy

Hierarchy level	Settlements	Common themes within level	Infrastructure capacity issues
Level 1 Settlements	Lichfield (Including Streethay)	These settlements have access to a range of supermarkets and local convenience stores, a large range of services and facilities and access to both primary and secondary schools in the settlement. These settlements also have a good level of access to employment and a great number of higher order services using public transport.	Lichfield has several schools, particularly in the southern part of the city and in Streethay that are consistently oversubscribed and operating at or over capacity. Any substantial additional development in Lichfield could potentially necessitate increased primary and secondary education capacity. Similarly, evidence suggests that primary healthcare services in Lichfield city are operating at or near to full capacity. Lichfield has very good public transport, with two railway stations and a bus station providing a variety of local and regional services. There are congestion hotspots in the city, particularly around Trent Valley/Eastern Avenue, Wall Island, A5 Muckley Corner and Streethay.
Level 2 Settlements	Burntwood	These settlements have access to a range of supermarkets and local convenience stores, a larger range of services and facilities and access to both primary and secondary schools in the settlements. Despite having a good	There are two consistently oversubscribed schools in Burntwood – Fulfen Primary School and Erasmus Darwin Academy. Any development in and around these locations may require additional primary and secondary school capacity. Alternatively, students would need

Hierarchy level	Settlements	Common themes within level	Infrastructure capacity issues
		range of services and facilities as well as access to employment and other higher order services the services and facilities available are not as vast and varied as those in Level 1 settlements.	to travel to schools that have capacity further away in Burntwood, which is likely to increase the number of car journeys and reduce sustainable travel methods such as walking. Evidence suggests that primary healthcare services in Burntwood are near to capacity. However, there are plans to develop a new health centre at Cherry Close. Burntwood's public transport connectivity is relatively limited compared to the size of its population.
Level 3 Settlements	Fazeley, Mile Oak and Bonehill; Little Aston; Shenstone; Armitage with Handsacre; Alrewas; Whittington. Fradley.	Settlements within Level 3 typically have access to a convenience food store and have a good range of services and facilities within the settlement. They typically have a primary school within the settlement and access to a secondary school using public transport. They have a good level of access to employment and can access several centres using public transport.	Schools within Level 3 settlements are broadly under capacity, with the exception of Little Aston Primary Academy which is operating just over capacity. Neither Fradley nor Little Aston have access to GP services within their settlement boundaries and are reliant on healthcare provision in Alrewas and Sutton Coldfield. Except for Shenstone, which benefits from a railway station on the Cross City Line, public transport options are somewhat limited in these settlements. However, all have access to bus services that provide good connections to employment centres and local schools.
Level 4 Settlements	Stonnall; Kings Bromley. Hopwas; Drayton Bassett	Settlements within Level 4 typically have access to a smaller range of facilities and services compared to higher level settlements. They generally have access to educational facilities and good access to both employment and other centres using public transport, although not when compared to higher level settlements.	Schools are operating under capacity in these settlements, with the exception of Thomas Barnes School in Hopwas which is currently over capacity and has been consistently oversubscribed for the past 5 years. None of these settlements have a GP surgery within their boundary, however all are located within the catchment for GP surgeries in neighbouring settlements.

Hierarchy level	Settlements	Common themes within level	Infrastructure capacity issues
			Drayton Bassett does not currently have a bus service and as a result, residents are heavily reliant on the use of private cars.
Level 5 Settlements and other rural areas	Hammerwich; Hill Ridware; Longdon; Colton; Edingale; Elford; Clifton Campville; Wigginton; Harlaston; Upper Longdon; Hamstall Ridware and other rural areas.	These settlements generally have very few services and facilities when compared to a higher level settlement. They also have the poorest access to employment and other centres due to lack of sufficient public transport.	Public transport is a major concern in several of these settlements, with Colton, Longdon, Wigginton, Upper Longdon, Harlaston, Hammerwich, and Hamstall Ridware lacking access to any bus service. Meanwhile, Elford, Clifton Campville, and Edingale have limited weekday services but no access to weekend bus services.

- 8.3 The findings of the settlement study in Table 18 are mostly consistent with the findings of the previous settlement sustainability study. However, due to the methodology now accounting for both the presence and quantity of specific infrastructure types, there have been some changes in the scoring of the settlements. Furthermore, this study has identified existing capacity issues across key infrastructure types for each settlement, offering a deeper understanding of their sustainability and potential to accommodate further growth.
- 8.4 In terms of the settlement hierarchy itself, there have been two changes to the rankings. Drayton Bassett, previously categorised as a Level 5 settlement, has been upgraded to a Level 4 settlement due to its higher score in the 2024 study. This recognition is based on the availability of services and facilities in the settlement, as well as its proximity to services in Fazeley and Tamworth. Additionally, following the formal designation of Hammerwich's village boundary in the Hammerwich Neighbourhood Plan, Hammerwich has now been assessed and identified as a Level 5 settlement.

9. Settlement sustainability summary

- 5.1 Lichfield and Burntwood continue to be at the top of the settlement hierarchy due to their greater access to services and facilities, classifying them as Level 1 and Level 2 settlements, respectively. This classification is consistent with the findings of previous assessments. However, as highlighted in Table 10, there are notable capacity issues in some primary and secondary schools in both Lichfield city and Burntwood. Similarly, the evidence indicates that primary and secondary healthcare capacity is also under significant pressure in these areas.
- 5.2 Level 3 settlements have remained largely consistent with those identified in previous study. Little Aston, which had previously been identified within the 'other rural' category in the Local Plan Strategy has now moved up into Level 3 owing to its good level of facilities, services, transport connections and proximity to the facilities located closely within the wider conurbation.
- 5.3 A fourth level of settlements has been identified with these settlements scoring higher than several other smaller rural settlements lacking access to services, facilities and public transport. Stonnall, Kings Bromley, Drayton Bassett and Hopwas have been designated as Level 4, with all other settlements and the wider rural areas classified as Level 5.
- 5.4 The relative sustainability of settlements remains consistent with previous studies with Lichfield as the strategic centre, Burntwood as a large centre and seven larger rural settlements (Alrewas, Armitage with Handsacre, Fazeley, Little Aston, Mile Oak and Bonehill, Fradley, Shenstone and Whittington) and the remaining settlements falling under 'Other Rural Settlements'. This study indicates the potential to further divide the other rural areas into two levels, with Stonnall, Kings Bromley, Hopwas and Drayton Bassett scoring slightly higher than other rural settlements.

Appendix A: Department for Transport travel data

To establish which facilities and services are most valued and used by communities it was important to understand which facilities generate the largest number of trips. Where communities have better access locally to these facilities or where they are accessible by sustainable transport this will lead to more sustainable patterns of transport and enable people to access the services and facilities they value and use more easily.

Purpose of trip	Number of trips taken for this purpose on average per person 2022
Commuting	119
Business	18
Education	62
Escort education	56
Shopping	151
Other escort	74
Personal business	69
Visiting friends at private home	72
Visiting friends elsewhere	41
Entertainment / public activity	50
Sport: participate	12
Holiday: base	11
Day trip	34
Other including just walk	92

Source: Department for Transport, National Travel Survey 2022

Appendix B: Settlement scores by indicator

Settlement	Education (out of 30)	Health (out of 40)	Culture and communities (out of 40)	Leisure and open spaces (out of 30)	Employment (out of 20)	Transport (out of 40)	Retail and services (out of 40)	Total score (out of 240)
Lichfield	30	34	36	28	20	34	40	222
Burntwood	30	28	32	28	18	12	36	184
Shenstone	7	18	22	12	20	24	18	121
Fazeley, Mile Oak, Bonehill	9	22	16	15	18	17	23	120
Little Aston	9	18	6	16	16	19	20	104
Armitage with Handsacre	9	18	12	14	18	8	17	96
Fradley	9	16	4	15	20	16	15	95
Alrewas	7	18	14	14	16	12	12	93
Whittington	7	18	10	16	16	17	8	92
Hopwas	5	13	12	14	18	21	2	85
Stonnall	5	14	10	10	18	15	9	81
Kings Bromley	7	10	6	12	16	14	8	73
Drayton Bassett	7	16	8	10	18	13	0	72
Hill Ridware	7	14	6	12	16	10	3	68
Colton	4	12	8	6	18	5	5	58
Longdon	5	12	10	6	18	0	3	54
Elford	5	10	6	14	14	2	3	54
Hammerwich	0	14	4	8	18	8	0	52
Clifton Campville	5	8	6	8	16	6	2	51
Wigginton	4	12	4	4	16	5	2	47
Edingale	5	8	4	6	14	6	0	43
Upper Longdon	3	14	2	4	18	0	2	43
Harlaston	3	8	4	6	14	2	2	39
Hamstall Ridware	0	12	4	6	14	0	2	38

Appendix C: Services and facilities by settlement

Lichfield

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
			Busy Bees Nursery	110	
			Footsteps Nursery	89	
	Υ	5	Humpty Dumpty Nursery Lichfield	210	
			Buds All Day Childcare	24	
			Bright Horizons Springfield Nursery	134	
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
			Abacus Pre School		
			Catkins Pre School		
			Jack and Jills Pre School		
			Boley Park Pre School		
			Five Spires Pre School		
			St Chads Pre School		
	Υ	14	Lichfield Cathedral School Pre School		
	T	14	St Peter and St Paul Pre School		
			Scotch Orchard Pre School		
			Chadsmead Pre School		
			Willows Pre School		
			Charnwood Pre School		
			Streethay Pre School		
			Humpty Dumpty St Michaels	114	
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
			Willows Primary School	420	377
			Chadsmead Primary Academy	420	248
			St Peters & St Pauls Primary	140	130
			St Chads CofE Primary School	210	220
			Scotch Orchard Primary School	210	180
	Y	12	St Michaels CofE Primary School	420	425
		12	St Josephs RC Primary School	210	212
			Five Spires Academy	210	230
			Christ Church CofE Primary School	420	418
			Anna Seward Primary School (opened Sept 2023)	210	26
			Streethay Primary School (opened Sept 2019)	210	191
			Charnwood Primary Academy	210	232
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity					
		·	King Edward VI School	1395	1607					
			Friary School	1250	1228					
	Υ	4	Lichfield Cathedral School (2-18 yrs)	616	535					
			Netherstowe School	929	666					
Health			Netherstowe school	323	Capacity					
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients	Accepting new patients?					
di saigery/neutili centre			The Westgate Practice	30,700	Yes					
	Υ	3	Langton Medical Group	13,129	Yes					
	, T	3								
Here's Leading and ARE			Darwin Medical Practice	21,258	Yes					
Hospital without A&E	.,	_								
	Υ	1	Samuel Johnson Community Hospital							
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am						
	N	0	Good Hope Hospital, Sutton Coldfield	21 minutes						
Opticians										
			Boots							
			Specsavers							
	v	6	Colin Lee							
	Y	Υ	8	Vision Express						
								Tesco Opticians		
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?					
			Bore Street Dental Practice		No					
					Asquith House Dental Practice		Yes			
			Dam Street Dental Practice		No					
			Guys Dental Practice		Only under 17s					
			Jacme Dental Practice		Only by referral for specialist care					
	Υ	10	Pickering House Dental Practice							
					Yes					
			Lichfield Dental Care		No					
			Lichfield Family Dental Surgery (private)		No					
			Dental Perfection		No					
			Spires Dental Clinic (private)		No					
Pharmacies										
			Boots							
			Tesco Pharmacy							
		_	Touchwood Pharmacy							
	Y	7	Jhoots Pharmacy							
	1 '				Boots Waitrose					
			Touchwood Boley Park							
C. H			Boots Langton Grange							
Culture and community										
Theatres										

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	1	Lichfield Garrick Theatre		
Cinemas					
	N	0		Planning granted for cinema. Completion due late 2025/early 2026.	
Museum					
	Υ	2	Samuel Johnson Birthplace Museum Erasmus Darwin Museum		
Village/community hall					
	Y	>15	Numerous - see https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/community/halls-hire-across- district	Community building to be delivered at Roman Heights, Streethay in the near future.	
Scout/cadet huts					
	Y	6	1st Lichfield (St Chads), The Leasowe 6th Lichfield, Christchurch Lane 5th Lichfield, Holy Cross 7th Lichfield, Ash Grove Lichfield Explorers, Beacon Park Lichfield Cadets, Cherry Orchard		
Community/day centres					
	Υ	2	The Rivers Specialist Opportunities - Braeburn Close Curborough Community Centre		
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Lichfield Library at St Marys		Monday8:30am - 5pm Tuesday8:30am - 6pm Wednesday8:30am - 5pm Thursday8:30am - 6pm Friday8:30am - 5pm Saturday9am - 4pm SundayClosed
Pubs & Bars					
Churches	Υ	36	Numerous		
	Y	13	Lichfield Cathedral St John the Baptist Christ Church St Michaels St Chads Lifechurch Wade Street Methodist Church St Marys Holy Cross		

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			St Peter & St Paul		
			Kingdom Hall of Jehovahs Witnesses		
			The Church of Jesus Christ Latter Day Saints		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
			Artificial grass pitch x 4		
			Golf course x 2		
			Golf driving range (just outside of settlement boundary)		
			Adult football grass pitches x 14		
			Junior football 11 v 11 pitches x 9		
			Junior football 9 v 9 pitches x 2		
	Υ	15	Junior Rugby Union pitches x 5		
	•	13	Mini soccer 5 v 5 pitches x 2		
			Mini soccer 7 v 7 pitches x 5		
			Tennis courts x 14		
			Rounders pitches x 17		
			Skate park		
			Bowling greens x 2		
			Senior Rugby Union pitches x 5		
Indoor sports types					
			Health and fitness gym x 9		
			Badminton courts x 15		
	Υ	6	Squash courts x 2		
	•	· ·	Glass backed squash courts x 2		
			Fitness studio x 5		
			Indoor swimming pool x 2		
Parks					
			Beacon Park		
			Brownsfield Park		
			Christian Fields		
			Darnford Park		
			Garden of Rememberance		
	Υ	12	Minster Pool & Walk		
	•		Saddlers Wood		
			Shortbutts Park		
			Stowe Fields and Stowe Pool		
			Stytchbrook Park		
			Darwin Park		
			Streethay District Park		
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	20	Beacon Park		

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			Beech Gardens		
			Burton Road, Streethay		
			City Wharf		
			Stowe Croft		
			Darnford Park		
			David Garrick Gardens		
			Heather Close/Scotch Orchard		
			Darwin Park		
			Oakenfield		
			Saddlers Wood		
			Sainte Foy Avenue		
			Shortbutts Park		
			Stytchbrook Gardens		
			Stowe Fields		
			Vallentin Way		
			Streethay Cathedral View		
			Streethay - Roman Heights		
			St Johns Grange SDA		
			Deanslade SDA		
Civic spaces					
			Market Square		
			Bore Street		
			Garden of Remembrance		
	Y	7	Memorial Gardens, Minster Pool		
			Speakers Corner		
			Cathedral Close		
			Garrick Square		
Allotments					
			Beacon Street		
			Netherstowe		
	Υ	6 sites/250 plots	Cherry Orchard		
		5 511C5/ 250 p10t5	Christchurch		
			The Moggs		
			Dovehouse Fields		
Cemeteries and churchyards					
			St Michaels		
		_	Stytchbrook Cemetary		
	Υ	5	St Chads Church Yard		
			Christ Church Yard		
			Lichfield Cathedral		
Water based recreation					

Lichida and Hatterton Canal resortation Some Pool - Holining Minister Pool Minister Po	Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Matural and semi natural greenspace						
Natural and semi natural greenspace V 2 Slowe Pool SSSI Christian Fields Local Nature Reserve Access to amenity greenspace From corridors V 3 Numerous S2 has of amenity space on 82 sites Total coverage within 480m/10 minute walk Lichield Canal Restoration Public Rights of Way - various Retail and services Convenience stores Tesco Express Netherstowe Coop Fosseway Cate Coop Curborough Road Coop Marks Walk Little Wattone Store John Convenience Store Londis Isatem Awence Mann News & Convenience Store Londis Isatem Coop Store Station Morrisons Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Booke King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Express Station Morrisons Booke King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Destrol Station Morrisons Wattoose Coop Book Park Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Wattoose Coop Book Park Wattoose		Y	3			
Some Pool SSSS Christian Fields Local Nature Reserve Christian Fields Local Resolution Christian Christian Fields Local Resolution Christi				Minster Pool		
Amenity greenspace	Natural and semi natural greenspace					
Amenity greenspace Section Christian Fields Local Nature Reserve Access to amenity greenspace Committee		Υ	2			
Numerous S2 ha of amenity space on 82 sites Total coverage within 480m/10 minute walk				Christian Fields Local Nature Reserve		
Section	Amenity greenspace					
Retail and services Convenience stores Y 20 Public Rights of Way - various Tesco Express Lichfield City Tesco Express Lichfield City Tesco Express Lichfield City Tesco Express Lichfield City Tesco Express Netherstowe Coop Fosseway Gate Coop Curborough Road Coop Marks Walk Little Watirose London Road Chapel Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tresco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Roace King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Express Netherstowe Coop Petrol Station Roace King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Express Netherstowe Coop Petrol Station Roace King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Watrose Coop Boley Park		Υ	Numerous	82 ha of amenity space on 82 sites	Total coverage within 480m/10 minute walk	
Betail and services	Green corridors					
Retail and services Convenience stores Fesco Express Lichfield City Tesco Express Netherstowe Coop Forseway Gate Coop Marks Walk Little Waitrose London Road Chaple Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Man News & Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costuter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Wittrose Coop Boley Park Long Boley Park Long Boley Park Long Boley Park Long Boley Park Morrisons Morrisons Morrisons Mo						
Retail and services Image: Property of the property of		Y	3			
Convenience stores Image: Company of the convenience store of the convenien				Public Rights of Way - various		
Tesco Express Lichfield City Tesco Express Vetherstowe Coop Fosseway Gate Coop Curborough Road Coop Marks Walk Little Waitrose London Road Chapel Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimitels Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Spar Store Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores						
Tesco Express Netherstowe Coop Fosseway Gate Coop Curborough Road Coop Marks Walk Little Waitrose London Road Chapel Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Tesco Description Tesco Express Netherstowe Coop Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Waitrose Coop Boley Park Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park	Convenience stores					
Cop Fosseway Gate Coop Curborough Road Coop Marks Walk Little Waitrose London Road Chapel Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supermewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbies Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Booze King Coop Petrol Coop Petrol Station Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores						
Coop Curborough Road Coop Marks Walk Little Waitrose London Road Chapel Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costart Under Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Spore King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park Coop Marks Walk Little Waitrose Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Lundis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Boley Park Coop Boley P						
Coop Marks Walk Little Waitrose London Road Chapel Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Covenweience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Spoze King Central Stores Lichfield City Ty 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4						
Little Waitrose London Road Chaple Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Foods King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Little Waitrose Choopen Road Chaple Lane Nann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News &						
Chapel Lane Convenience Store Londis Eastern Avenue Man News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Ty 4 Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Tesco Deloy Park Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Tesco Extra Lichfield Waitrose Coop Boley Park Te				Coop Marks Walk		
Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Londis Eastern Avenue Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Conveni				Little Waitrose London Road		
Mann News & Convenience Store Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City				Chapel Lane Convenience Store		
Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Booze King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Bley Park Large Food Stores Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Waitrose Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Dylan Convenience Store Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Delate				Londis Eastern Avenue		
Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Worrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz				Mann News & Convenience Store		
Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Worrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz Supernewz Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Witrose Coop Boley Park Euro Mini Market Coop Streethay Supernewz				Dylan Convenience Store		
Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Y 4 4 Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park		Y	20			
Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Y 4 4 Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Supernewz Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park				Coop Streethay		
Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Costcutter Wheel Lane Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Pozze King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Coop Boley P						
Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Spar Dimbles Lane Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores						
Tesco Petrol Station Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park						
Morrisons Petrol Station Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Morrisons Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Morrisons Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park				ļ ·		
Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Hypermarkets/Supermarkets Y 4 4 4 Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores I Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park I Coop Boley Park Coop Boley Park I Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park I Coop Boley Park I Coop Boley Park I Coop Petrol Station Booze King Central Stores Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park I Coop						
Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Hypermarkets/Supermarkets Y 4 Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Booze King Central Stores Lichfield City Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Tesco Extra Lichfield Waitrose Coop Boley Park Tesco						
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets Image: Compart of the properties of the proper						
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets Image: Company of the properties of the proper						
Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Tesco Extra Lichfield Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park	Hypermarkets/Supermarkets			central stores Element City		
Y4Morrisons Waitrose Coop Boley ParkMorrisons Waitrose Coop Boley ParkMorrisons Waitrose Coop Boley ParkMorrisons Waitrose Coop Boley Park	Trypermarkets/ Supermarkets			Tesco Extra Lichfield		
Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores Waitrose Coop Boley Park Large Food Stores						
Large Food Stores Coop Boley Park		Y	4			
Large Food Stores Store						
	Large Food Stores			. ,		
		Υ	4	Aldi		

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			Lidl		
			Iceland		
			Food Warehouse - Imperial Retail Park		
Non convenience shops					
	Υ	193	Numerous		
Restaurants					
	Υ	30	Numerous		
Cafes					
	Y	28	Numerous		
Takeaways					
	Υ	35	Numerous		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
			Lloyds Bank		
			HSBC		
			Fusion Credit Union		
	Υ	7 banks and several	NatWest		
		ATMS	Halifax		
			Yorkshire Building Society		
			Nationwide		
			ATMs	Numerous locations	
Post Offices					
			Bakers Lane		
	Υ	4	Chapel Lane		
			Wheel Lane		
Dublic transport			Trent Valley		
Public transport			Due comice number	Frequency	Organiza
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			3 - Lichfield to Little Aston and Streetly	Once a day (school service)	National Express WM
			8 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall	Every 30 minutes	National Express WM
			12 - Lichfield to Fradley, Alrewas, Yoxall, Barton and Burton	Every 1 hour	Diamond East Midlands
			12E - Lichfield to Fradley & Burton	6 times per day	Diamond East Midlands
			31 - Lichfield Netherstowe Circular	8 times per day	Chaserider
			31 - Lichfield Trent Valley Netherstowe Circular	Every 30 minutes (until 14:15pm)	Diamond East Midlands
		15 standard services	32 - Lichfield Netherstowe Trent Valley Circular	Every 1 hour	Chaserider
	Y	and 8 school services	32 - Lichfield Netherstowe Trent Valley Circular	Every 30 minutes	Diamond East Midlands
			36 - Lichfield to Shenstone, Stonnall, Aldridge & Walsall	Every 1 hour	Chaserider
			60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock	Every 30 minutes	Chaserider
			62 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Hednesford & Cannock	Every 1 hour	Chaserider
			105 - Handsacre to Friary and Netherstowe School	Once a day (school service)	LA Travel
			765 - King Edward VI to Whittington & Tamworth	Every 1 hour (term time)	Arriva
			766 - King Edward VI to Whittington	Once a day (school service)	Chaserider
			817 - Alrewas to Fradley & Friary School	Once a day (school service)	Diamond East Midlands

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			817A - Lichfield to Rodbaston College	Every Wednesday (college service)	Select Bus Services
			818 - Friary School to Fradley	(Once a day (school service)	Diamond East Midlands
			819 - Friary School to Fradley, Kings Bromley & Hill Ridware	Once a day (school service)	Diamond East Midlands
			826 - Lichfield to Rugeley & Stafford	Every 1 hour	Chaserider
			828 - Lichfield to Handsacre, Brereton, Rugeley & Stafford	Every 1 hour	Chaserider
			829 - Friary & Netherstowe schools to Armitage & Rugeley	Once a day (school service)	Diamond East Midlands
			X3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Birmingham	Every 30 minutes	National Express WM
			X12 - Lichfield to Burton	Every 30 minutes	Diamond East Midlands
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Y	15 Saturday services and 2 Sunday services	8 Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall 12 - Lichfield to Fradley, Alrewas, Yoxall, Barton and Burton 12E - Lichfield to Fradley & Burton 31 - Lichfield Netherstowe Circular 31 - Lichfield Trent Valley Netherstowe Circular 32 - Lichfield Netherstowe Trent Valley Circular 32 - Lichfield Netherstowe Trent Valley Circular 36 - Lichfield to Shenstone, Stonnall, Aldridge & Walsall 60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock 62 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Hednesford & Cannock 765 - Lichfield to Whittington & Tamworth 826 - Lichfield to Rugeley & Stafford 828 - Lichfield to Handsacre, Brereton, Rugeley & Stafford X3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Birmingham X12 - Lichfield to Burton	Every 30 minutes (Saturdays and Sundays Every 1 hour (Saturdays) 6 times per day (Saturdays) 4 times per day (Saturdays) Every 1 hour (Saturdays) Every 30 minutes (Saturdays) Every 1 hour (Saturdays) Every 30 minutes (Saturdays) Every 30 minutes (Saturdays) & every 1 hour (Sundays) Every 30 minutes (Saturdays) & every 1 hour (Sundays)	National Express WM Diamond East Midlands Diamond East Midlands Chaserider Diamond East Midlands Chaserider Diamond East Midlands Chaserider Chaserider Chaserider Chaserider Arriva Chaserider Chaserider National Express WM Diamond East Midlands
Railway stations				(canada)	
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	.,		Lichfield City Station	Cross City Line services only	
	Υ	2	Lichfield Trent Valley Station	Cross City and WCML services	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)				Minutes	
			A5 Wall island junction	7	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car					

Lichfield facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			Trent Valley Estate		
			Britannia Industrial Estate		
As defined within the Local Plan Policies		Y 7	Shires Industrial Estate		
Maps	Y		Burton Old Road		
ινιαμο			City Wharf		
			Greenhough Road		
			Willtell Road Industrial Estate		

Burntwood

Burntwood facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
			Oakbridge Little Learners	34	
	Υ	3	Sunny Days Nursery	64	
			Busy Bees St Matthews	111	
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
		8	Little Owl Childcare, Highfields (Part of Highfields Primary School) Little People Nursery (Part of Boney Hay School) Little Owl Childcare - Woodland Nursery Chase Terrace Primary Pre School St Joseph & St Theresa Catholic Primary Pre School Holly Grove Primary Academy Pre School Springhill Primary Academy Pre School	21 55 35	
			Fulfen Primary School Pre School		
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Y	8	Chase Terrace Primary School St Joseph & St Theresa Catholic Primary Holly Grove Primary Academy Springhill Primary Academy Boney Hay Primary Academy Ridgeway Primary Academy Highfields Primary Academy Fulfen Primary School	315 210 315 210 210 420 254 420	280 209 277 193 189 406 204 409
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	2	Chase Terrace Academy Erasmus Darwin Academy	1411 1141	1309 1084
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	Υ	3	Salters Meadow Health Centre	11,308	Yes
	,	1	Burntwood Health and Wellbeing Centre	2,666	Site closed 31st March 2024

Burntwood facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			The Langton Medical Group Boney Hay	13,129	Yes
			The Darwin Practice	21,258	Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N		Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital in Lichfield		
	IN	0	(3.9 miles		
				Drive time (minutes)	
				during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Good Hope Hospital, Sutton Coldfield	34.5 minutes	
Opticians					
			Boots - Chase Terrace		
	Y	4	David Stidwill		
	-		Colin Lee		
			See to it Opticians (home eye tests)		
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
			Inspire Dental & Implant Centre		Yes
	Υ	3	High Street Dental Practice		No
			mydentist		No
Pharmacies					
			Day Night Pharmacy		
			N & J's Chemist		
	Υ	6	Chase Terrace Pharmacy		
			Jhoots Pharmacy		
			Chasetown Pharmacy Northwood Pharmacy		
Culture and community			Northwood Pharmacy		
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	Υ	1	Chasewater Railway & Museum		
Village/community hall					
			Chase Terrace Methodist Hall	ĺ	
			Chasewater Innovation Centre		
			Boney Hay Working Men's Club		
	Y	6	The Old Mining College Centre		
			Spark Burntwood		
			St Matthews Sports & Social Club	ĺ	
			Burntwood Memorial Institute		
Scout/cadet huts					
	Υ	2	1st Chase Terrace Scouts - Ironstone Road		

Burntwood facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			1st Burntwood - Elder Lane		
Community/day centres					
	Y	3	Spark Community Centre Burntwood Memorial Institute The Old Mining College Centre		
Libraries					Opening times
	Y	1	Burntwood Library		Monday9am - 5pm Tuesday9am - 7pm Wednesday9am - 5pm Thursday9am - 5pm Friday9am - 5pm Saturday10am - 4pm SundayClosed
Pubs & Bars					
	Y	20	Wych Elm The Cottage of Content Drill Inn Forresters Tavern Junction Inn Miners Rest The Crown The Nags Head The Hazelwood The Star The Trident Uxbridge Arms Victoria Inn White Swan Grangemoor Working Men's Club Grevilles Boney Hay Working Men's Club St Matthews Sports & Social Club Vintage Liquid Taphouse The Firs Club		
Churches					
	Y	9	Burntwood Methodist Church Christ Church Beacon Community Church Chasetown Methodist Church St Joseph's St Anne's St John's Chase Terrace Methodist Church Emmanuel New Life Church		

Burntwood facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Y	11	Artificial grass pitch x 2 Adult football grass pitches x 16 Cricket grass pitches x 6 Hockey grass pitch Junior football 11 v 11 grass pitches x 6 Junior football 9 v 9 grass pitches x 5 Mini soccer 5 v 5 grass pitches x 5 Mini soccer 7 v 7 grass pitches x 18 Rounders grass pitches x 14 Senior Rugby Union grass pitches x 5 Outdoor tennis courts x 10		Burntwood Youth Centre and skate park - closed 2022 to make way for new health centre
Indoor sports types					
	Y	7	Health and fitness gym x 3 Badminton courts x 15 Glass backed squash courts x 2 Fitness studio x 3 Learner swimming pool x 1 Gymnastics club Swimming pool x 2		
Parks					
	Y	7	Burntwood Park Chase Terrace Park Chasetown Memorial Park Chase View Park Chasewater Country Park Prince's Park* Redwood Park		
Equipped play areas					
	Y	7	Redwood Park Chase Terrace Park Chasewater Burntwood Leisure Centre Burntwood Park Burntwood SDA - Fallows Heath Coppy Nook park (just outside of settlement boundary)		
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	Y	3 sites/65 plots	Norton Lane Coulter Lane Peter's Lane		
Cemeteries and churchyards					

Burntwood facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Y	5	Burntwood Cemetery Chase & District Crematorium (just outside of settlement boundary) St Johns Churchyard, Rugeley Road St Annes Churchyard Christ Church Yard		Full - no more plots available
Water based recreation					
	Y	5	Chasewater Country Park - water skiing Chasewater Country Park - sailing club Chasewater Country Park - outdoor education facility Chasewater Country Park - fishing Chasewater Country Park - sub aqua facility		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Y	2	Chasewater Country Park SSSI Gentleshaw Common SSSI immediately to the north of settlement		
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Y	Numerous	30ha of amenity space on 49 sites	Majority of residents have access to some form of amenity greenspace within 480m/10 minute walk	
Green corridors					
	Y	2	National Cycle Route 5 Public Rights of Way - various		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Y	15	B&D Superstore Spar, Cannock Road Esso Petrol Station store, Cannock Road One Stop, Parkhill Road One Stop, Rugeley Road Costcutter, Chorley Road Coop Highfields Road Coop Swan Island Khevin Store Coop Morley Road Lifestyle Express, Oak Lane Barry's Off License Simply Local, Queen Street Bargain Booze Boora Newsagents Morrisons Petrol Station		Lichfield Centres study (2017) identified capacity for additional convenience floorspace within Burntwood town centre

Premier Eastgate News	Burntwood facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Takeaways Takeaways Y 1 Morrisons Y 2 Aldi Heron Foods Numerous Numerous Numerous Spice Lounge Ashinga Major Curry Affair Nana's Kirchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Paha Paha Nikey Teas Cotate Coffee The Start Hotel Takeaways Y 2 Numerous Spice Lounge Ashinga Major Curry Affair Nana's Kirchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Paha Paha The Start Hotel Takeaways Y 2 Numerous Spice Lounge Ashinga Major Curry Affair Nana's Kirchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Paha Paha Paha The Start Hotel Takeaways Y 2 Numerous Spice Lounge Ashinga Major Curry Affair Nana's Kirchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Paha Paha Paha Paha Paha Paha Paha Pah						
Large Food Stores Y 2 Aidi Heron Foods Numerous Numerous Numerous Uchfield Centres Study (2017) limited provision of comparis Summwood Town Cer Spice Lounge Ashings Major Curry Affair Khan's Kitchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha The Stat Hotel Affas Milkey Teas Costa Coffee Cigno Face Backey Chase Park The Stadrock Caferia Cafe S Takeaways Takeaways Affas Y 2 Numerous Sankey's Corner Post Office Balls Lane Collect & Drop Chaserborn Cere Sankey's Corner Post Office Balls Lane Collect & Drop Chaserborn Cere Buss services Buss services Buss service number Frequency Operator Chaspriedr Chaspriedr Chaspriedr Chaspried Chaspriedr Chaspriedr Chaspriedr Chaspriedr Chaspriedr Chaspried Chaspriedr Chaspried Chaspriedr Chaspried Chaspried Chaspriedr Chaspried C	Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
Non convenience shops Part		Υ	1	Morrisons		
V 2 Add Heron Foods	Large Food Stores					
Non convenience shops Heron Foods		.,		Aldi		
Restaurants Spice Lounge Ashigs Major Curry Affair Khan's kitchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha Takeaways Takeaways Takeaways Y 22 Numerous Numerous Lichfield Centres Study (2017) Imited provision of comparis Burntwood Town Cer Rumitwood Town Cer Ashigs Major Curry Affair Khan's kitchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha Takea Costa Coffee Cigno Pardshaws Farm Shop and Café The Bakery Chase Park The Station Cafeteria Café Fika Café Fika Y 22 Numerous Several locations Post Offices Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency Operator National Express WM Chaserosu Post Office Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency Operator National Express WM Chaserosu Ontono Chaserosu Cha		Y	2	Heron Foods		
Restaurants Spice Lounge Ashigs Major Curry Affair Nan's Kitchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha The Start Hotel Takeaways	Non convenience shops					
Spice Lounge Ashigs Major Curry Affair Khan's Kitchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha The Star Hotel Cafes Mikey Teas Costa Coffee Cigno 8 Radshaws Farm Shop and Café The Bakery Chase Park The Star Cafetria Café Fika Café Fika Y 22 Numerous Banks/Building Societies/ATMs Y 1 ATMs Several locations Post Offices Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency Operator National Express WM Chaserder		Y	84	Numerous		Lichfield Centres Study (2017) identified a limited provision of comparison retail in Burntwood Town Centre
Ashigs Major Curry Affair Khan's Kitchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha Pasha The Star Hotel Cafes Mikey Teas Costa Coffee Cigno Bradshaws Farm Shop and Café The Bakey Chase Park The Station Cafeteria Cafe Fika Cafe Fika V 22 Numerous Sankey Societies/ATMs S Several locations Post Offices Y 1 ATMS Several locations Post Office Y 4 Burntwood Post Office Burntwood & Walsail Every 30 minutes Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency Operator Weekday bus services Raftigiar Ashigs Major Curry Affair Khan's Kitchen John Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha The Station Cafe Restaurant Pasha The Station Cafe The	Restaurants					
Mikey Teas Costa Coffee Cigno Bradshaws Farm Shop and Café The Bakery Chase Park The Station Cafeteria Café Fika Takeaways Y 22 Numerous Banks/Building Societies/ATMs Y 1 ATMs Several locations Post Offices Y 4 Burntwood Post Office Bulls Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency Operator Bational Express WM Chaserider Otherson			7	Ashiqs Major Curry Affair Khan's Kitchen Johnny Wong's Chinese Restaurant Pasha		
Takeaways Takeaways Y 22 Numerous Banks/Building Societies/ATMs Y 1 ATMs Several locations Y 4 Sankey's Corner Post Office Burntwood Post Office Bulls Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Bus service number Bus service number Frequency Operator National Express WM 60 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall Every 30 minutes National Express WM Chaserider	Cafes					
Public transport Weekday bus services Public transport Weekday bus services Public transport Weekday bus services Numerous ATMs Several locations Sankey's Corner Post Office Burntwood Post Office Bells Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Bus service number Frequency Service number Service number Frequency Operator 8 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall GO - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider			7	Costa Coffee Cigno Bradshaws Farm Shop and Café The Bakery Chase Park The Station Cafeteria		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs Y 1 ATMs Several locations Post Offices Y 4 Burntwood Post Office Bells Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency Operator 8 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall 60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider	Takeaways					
Post Offices Y 4 Sankey's Corner Post Office Burntwood Post Office Bells Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Bus service number 8 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider		Y	22	Numerous		
Post Offices Y 4 Sankey's Corner Post Office Burntwood Post Office Bells Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Bus service number 8 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider	Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
Y 4 Sankey's Corner Post Office Burntwood Post Office Bells Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency 8 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall Fevery 30 minutes For y 30 minutes National Express WM Chaserider		Y	1	ATMs	Several locations	
Y 4 Burntwood Post Office Bells Lane Collect & Drop Chasetown Post Office Public transport Weekday bus services Bus service number 8 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall 60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider	Post Offices					
Weekday bus services Bus service number Frequency Operator 8 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall Every 30 minutes National Express WM 60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider		Y	4	Burntwood Post Office Bells Lane Collect & Drop		
8 - Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall Every 30 minutes National Express WM 60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider						
60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock Every 30 minutes Chaserider	Weekday bus services					
3 standard services and 3 college services 62 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Hednesford & Cannock Chaserider Once per day (Stafford college 574C - Chase Terrace to Cannock and Stafford Service) Chaserider			3 standard services and 3 college services	60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock 62 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Hednesford & Cannock	Every 30 minutes Every 1 hour Once per day (Stafford college	Chaserider Chaserider

Burntwood facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			817A - Rugeley to Lichfield, Burntwood and Rodbaston	Once per day (Rodbaston college service) Once per day (Rodbaston college	Select Bus Services
			875S - Rodbaston to Lichfield, Burntwood and Cannock	service)	Select Bus Services
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Y	3	8 Lichfield to Burntwood & Walsall 60 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Norton Canes & Cannock 62 - Lichfield to Burntwood, Hednesford & Cannock	Every 30 minutes (Saturdays and Sundays) Every 30 minutes (Saturdays) Every 1 hour (Saturdays)	National Express WM Chaserider Chaserider
Railway stations				, ,	
-	N	0	Lichfield City	4.5 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)				Minutes	
			A5/A5195	7	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car					
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	Υ	5	Stanley Road Business Park Burntwood Business Park Plant Lane Business Park Chasewater Heaths Business Park Mount Road Industrial Estate		Chase Trade Park, Robins Road currently under construction. Will provide 11 units

Shenstone

Shenstone facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Rainbows Nursery		
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll

Shenstone facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	1	Greysbrooke Primary School	210	203
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	King Edward VI School (2.7 miles) - catchment school	1395	1607
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	Υ	1	The Westgate Practice (Shenstone Branch)	30,700	Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital in Lichfield (3.4 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is at Good Hope Hospital, Sutton Coldfield (5.2 miles)	17 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	Υ	1	Shenstone Dental Centre		No - private
Pharmacies					
	Y	1	M.W. Phillips Chemist		
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
			Shenstone Village Hall		
			Cooper Room		
	Y	4			
			Shenstone Country Club		
			St John's Church Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times

Shenstone facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Y	1	Shenstone Community Library		Monday - Closed Tuesday9am - 5pm Wednesday9am - 12pm Thursday9am - 12pm / 2pm- 5pm Friday9am - 5pm Saturday9:30am - 12pm SundayClosed
Pubs & Bars					
	Y	5	Shenstone Country Club The Bull's Head Fox & Hounds Railway Inn The Plough		
			The Flough		
Churches					
	Υ	2	St John the Baptist Trinity Methodist Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Y	3	Adult football grass pitch x 1 Mini soccer 7v7 grass pitch x 1 Outdoor tennis courts x 2		
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	Y	1	Shenstone Playing Fields		
Equipped play areas	Υ	1	Shenstone Recreation Ground		Lack of provision of equipped play in southern half of village
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	2	St John the Baptist Church Yard Trinity Methodist Church		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					

Shenstone facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			Malkin's Coppice (outside of settlement) - site of Biological		
	Y	1	Interest		
			Lammas Land - Biodiversity Alert Site	A	
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
Amenity greenspace				Most of settlement	
				within 480m/10-	
			6.4ha of amenity space on 4 sites	minute walk except	
				for small area to the	
Green corridors	Υ			south west	
Green corridors			Cycle routes		
	Y	2	Public Rights of Way		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Υ	2	Tesco Express Costcutter		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets		_			
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops			Luce e tru		
			HCB Solicitors		
			Penelope & Company Hair & Beauty		
	Y		Emily Charlotte Furniture & Ceramics		
		5	Dobbies Garden Centre (just outside of settlement)		
			Russells of Shenstone		
			Serenity Beauty		
			Oddfellows Hair		
Restaurants					
			The Plough		
			Shanstona Country Club		
	Υ	4	Shenstone Country Club		
			The Bull's Head		

Shenstone facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			The Fox and Hounds		
Cafes					
Cales			Shenstone Library Café		
	Υ	1	Dobbies Garden Centre (just outside of settlement)		
Takeaways					
,			Shenstone Chinese Takeaway and Fish Bar		
	Ιγ	2			
			Shenstone Country Club (Indian)		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Υ	1	Tesco ATM		
Post Offices					
	Υ	1	Shenstone Post Office		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			36 - Lichfield to Shenstone, Aldridge & Walsall	Every 1 hour	Chase Rider
	Υ	3	3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Streetly	Every 30 minutes	National Express WM
			X3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Streetly	Every 30 minutes	National Express WM
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			26 Liebfield to Charatana Aldridas (C. Natali	Every 1 hour	Chase Rider
			36 - Lichfield to Shenstone, Aldridge & Walsall	(Saturdays) Every 30 minutes	Chase Rider
		3	3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Streetly	(Saturdays)	National Express WM
			2 Element to Sutton continent & Streetly	Every 30 minutes	ivational Express vvivi
			X3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Streetly	(Saturdays)	National Express WM
Railway stations					
	Υ	1	Shenstone Railway Station		
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)				9am	
Centre of settlement = Fox and Hounds Pub Employment			A38/A5 Wall Island	5 minutes	
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	Υ	2	Birchbrook Industrial Park		
			Shenstone Business Park		

Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill

Education Y/N How many are there? Facility name Number Capacity	Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill					
Nurseries (year round provision) Y 2 Footsteps Fazeley Nursery & Pre School (just outside of settlement) Little Scallywags Day Nursery Mile Oak Number of places Number of places Number of places Number currently on roll Number of places Number currently on roll Number of places Accepting new patients? Y 1 Laurel House Surgery Fazeley Branch Velocyting Index of places Number of patients (Jan 2024) Accepting new patients? Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	facilities/services	Present			Number	
Footsteps Fazeley Nursery & Pre School (just outside of settlement) Little Scallywags Day Nursery Mile Oak V 2 Fazeley Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Number of places Number currently on roll Number of places Number or places Number of places Numbe	Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Settlement) Little Scallywags Day Nursery Mile Oak Number of places Number of plac	Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only) Y 2 Fazeley Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Primary schools Y 2 Millfield Primary School According of places According or places Accordin					66	
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only) Y 2 Fazeley Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Primary schools Y 2 Millfield Primary School Longwood Primary School Longwood Primary School Longwood Primary School Secondary schools Number of places Number currently on roll A 20 A 38 Longwood Primary School Longwood Primary School Longwood Primary School Number of places Number of places Number currently on roll Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Number of places Number currently on roll Number of places Number currently on roll Capacity Number of places Numbe		Υ	2			
Fazeley Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Little Oaks Pre School Primary schools Y 2 Millfield Primary School Longwood Primary School Romer Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Number of places Number currently on roll Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Number of places Number currently on roll Capacity Capacity Accepting new patients? Y 1 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)				Little Scallywags Day Nursery Mile Oak		
Primary schools Y 2 Millfield Primary School Longwood Primary School Secondary schools N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N	Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
Primary schools Y 2 Millfield Primary School Longwood Primary School 210 Number of places Number currently on roll Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Number of places Number currently on roll Number of places Number currently on roll Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Number of places Number currently on roll Number of places Number currently on roll Accepting new patients? Accepting new patients? Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)		Υ	2			
Millfield Primary School Longwood Primary School Longwood Primary School Secondary schools N O Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) N O Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Number of places Capacity Number of patients (Jan 2024) Accepting new patients? Y 1 Laurel House Surgery Fazeley Branch 12,679 Ye Hospital without A&E N Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	2			Little Oaks Pre School		21 1 11
Secondary schools N O Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Health GP surgery/health centre Y 1 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes) 100 Rumber of places Number of places Number of patients (Jan 2024) Accepting new patients? Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	Primary schools			ANUC 110: CI I	•	
Secondary schools N O Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) Health GP surgery/health centre Y 1 Laurel House Surgery Fazeley Branch Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes) Number of places Number currently on roll Capacity Accepting new patients? Ye Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)		Υ	2			
Catchment Secondary school is The Rawlett School (2.48 miles) 1260 1074	Casandamisasharala			Longwood Primary School		
Health GP surgery/health centre Y 1 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Miles) Mumber of patients (Jan 2024) Accepting new patients? Accepting new patients? Ye Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	Secondary schools			Catabase ant Casas alam cabas Lia The Davidatt Cabas L/2 40		
Health Capacity GP surgery/health centre Y 1 Laurel House Surgery Fazeley Branch 12,679 Accepting new patients? Hospital without A&E Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)		N	0		1260	1074
GP surgery/health centre Y 1 Laurel House Surgery Fazeley Branch Hospital without A&E Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	Health			Times)		Canacity
GP surgery/health centre Y 1 Laurel House Surgery Fazeley Branch 12,679 Hospital without A&E Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	Health				Number of nationts	Capacity
Hospital without A&E Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	GP surgery/health centre				•	Accepting new patients?
Hospital without A&E Y 1 Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Drive time (minutes)	G. Sangery, neural control	٧	1	Laurel House Surgery Fazeley Branch		Yes
Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement boundary Prive time (minutes)	Hospital without A&F		<u>-</u>	Education and Education and Education	12,073	163
boundary Drive time (minutes)	Hospital Willout / IQL			Robert Peel Community Hospital - just outside of settlement		
Drive time (minutes)		Y	1			
				,	Drive time (minutes)	
during peak hours 8-					during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E 9am	Hospital with A&E					
N 0 Good Hope Hospital, Sutton Coldfield 15 minutes		N	0	Good Hope Hospital, Sutton Coldfield	15 minutes	
Opticians	Opticians					
N O		N	0			
Dentists Accepting new NHS patients?	Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
N 0		N	0			
Pharmacies	Pharmacies					
Y 1 Fazeley Pharmacy		Υ	1	Fazeley Pharmacy		
Culture and community Culture and community	Culture and community					
Theatres	Theatres					
N O		N	0			
Cinemas Cinema	Cinemas					
N O		N	0			
Museum Control	Museum					
N O		N	0			
Village/community hall	Village/community hall					

Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill					
facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Y	4	Drayton Manor - various spaces (just outside of settlement) Fazeley Town Hall Mile Oak Community Centre Drayton Manor Cricket & Social Club		
Scout/cadet huts					
2 2 11	N	0			
Community/day centres					
1th and the	N	0			O contractions
Libraries	Y	1	Mile Oak Mobile Library		Opening times Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars	Y	1	Wille Oak Mobile Library		visits twice a month
Pubs & Bais			The Longwood		
Churches	Y	2	The Three Tuns The Fazeley Inn Drayton Manor Cricket & Social Club Mile Oak Rovers Social Club The Plough and Harrow The Three Horseshoes St Pauls Church Saint Barnabas Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Y	4	BMX Pump Track Adult football grass pitches x 2 Junior football 11 v 11 grass pitches Mini soccer 5 v 5 grass pitches x 2	All are just on the outside of the settlement boundary	
Indoor sports types					
	Υ	1	Fitness gym		
Parks					
		2	Victory Terrace Recreation Ground Mile Oak Recreation Ground		
Equipped play areas					
	Y	3	Laurel House Victory Terrace Mile Oak Recreation Ground		

Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill					
facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Civic spaces					
	Υ	1	Fazeley Town Hall Square		
Allotments					
	Y	1	Self Sufficient Children Community Garden (just outside of settlement boundary)		
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	St Pauls Church Yard		
Water based recreation					
	Υ	1	Birmingham and Fazeley Canal - narrow boating and fishing		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Tameside Local Nature Reserve (just outside of settlement)		
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Υ	Numerous	2.7ha of amenity greenspace on 11 sites	Complete coverage within 480m/10-minute walk.	
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Birmingham & Fazeley Canal River Tame		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Υ	5	Nisa Local Eight 2 Late Londis Jet Essentials Tesco Express		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	Υ	11	Coral The Captain's Vape Lounge Kings Barbers Club Lichfield Street Barbers Monarch Gas		

Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill					
facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			Fazeley Tanning Studio		
			Toppers Hair Design		
			Toppers trail Design		
			Gina's Boutique		
			Quality Cake Company		
			ABS Computers		
			Kerry-Rose		
			•		
Restaurants					
			Ivory Tusk		
	Υ	4	Kudos Pepes		
			Fazeley Park Restaurant		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
			Pizzarino		
			Fazeley Fish Bar		
			Fortune Garden Chinese		
			Pepe's		
		8	Wong's Chinese		
			Subway		
			Mile Oak Fish Bar		
			Peninsular Cantonese		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
.,	Υ	1	ATMS x 4		
Post Offices					
	Υ	2	Fazeley Post Office Mile Oak Post Office		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Υ		110 - Birmingham to Tamworth via Sutton Coldfield	Every 30 minutes	Arriva Midlands

Fazeley, Mile Oak & Bonehill					
facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			R3 - Fazeley, Bonehill and Mile Oak to Rawlett School	Once per day (school service) Once per day (school	LA Travel (Midlands)
		1 standard service and 4 school services	R4 - Fazeley, Bonehill and Mile Oak to Rawlett School	service) Once per day (school	LA Travel (Midlands)
			SFA1 - St Francis of Assisi service	service) Once per day (school	National Express WM
			R15 - Drayton Bassett to Fazeley and Rawlett School	service)	LA Travel (Midlands)
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Y	1 Saturday and Sunday service	110 - Birmingham to Tamworth via Sutton Coldfield	Every 30 minutes (Saturdays and Sundays)	
Railway stations				Distance	
-	N	0	Wilnecote Railway Station	1.5 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
Centre of settlement = Longwood Pub			A5/M42 junction A5 A38/A446 junction	9.5 minutes 4 minutes 9.5 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car					
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	Υ	2	Riverside Industrial Estate Tolsons Enterprise Park		

Little Aston

Little Aston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Little Ripley Day Nursery	60	
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	v	2	Sparkletots Pre School (within Little Aston Primary Academy)		
	Ť	2	Little Aston Pre School		
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Little Aston Primary Academy (just outside of settlement)	230	245

Little Aston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	King Edward VI School (5.9 miles) - catchment school	1395	1607
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	The Oaks Medical Centre, Streetly (3.4 miles - 9 minutes by car)		
	l N		Sutton Coldfield Group Practice - Ashfurlong Medical Practice, Tamworth Road (2.5 miles - 13.5 minutes by car)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
·	Υ	1	Spire Little Aston (Private) - just outside of settlement		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
nospital with Acc	N	0	Nearest A&E is at Good Hope Hospital, Sutton Coldfield (2.8 miles)	15	
Opticians				-	
·	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	Υ	1	Little Aston Dental Care		No - private
Pharmacies				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
T Harmacies	N		Boots , Walsall Road, Four Oaks (1.2 miles)	5 minutes	
Culture and community	.,		boots , Walsain Hoad, Foar Oaks (1.2 Hilles)	5 minutes	
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	1	Little Aston Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	N	0			
Pubs & Bars					
	Y	1	XO Lounge		
Churches					

Little Aston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	2	St Peter's (just outside of settlement)		
	,	2	Streetly Methodist Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
			Outdoor bowls		
			Golf club x 2		
	Υ	6	Driving range		
			Junior football 11 v 11 grass pitch - Little Aston Primary		
			Tennis courts x 3		
			Rounders grass pitch x 2 - Little Aston Primary		
Indoor sports types	6.7	_			
	Y	1	Health and fitness gym - Aston Wood Golf Club		
Parks	.,				
	Υ	1	Little Aston Recreation Ground (just outside of settlement)		
Equipped play areas		_			
6:	Υ	1	Forge Lane		
Civic spaces					
Alletoned	N	0			
Allotments					
Compatible and shough and	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards	,,		Ct Datada (instantaida of sattle ment)		
Motor board researching	Υ	1	St Peter's (just outside of settlement)		
Water based recreation	N	0			
Natural and somi natural groonsnass	IN	U			
Natural and semi natural greenspace	Υ	1	Sutton Park (just outside of settlement boundary)		
	Ť	1	Sutton Park Gust outside of Settlement boundary)	Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
, 5		_	Open spaces assessment 2020 identified no publicly	U Province	
	N	0	accessible amenity greenspaces		
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Cycle route		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Υ	2	Coop Food		
			Little Aston News & Convenience		
Single themed convenience store					
	Υ	1	Pat's Butchers		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			

Little Aston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Non convenience shops					
			The Village Beauty Salon		
			Geeves of Streetly		
			The Little Sanctuary		
			Chubb Locksmiths		
			Window Centre		
			Ave Maria Care Centre		
			Kesseler Birmingham		
			Burnett Clinic		
			Resolve Physiotheraphy		
			Vanilla		
	Y		L'Interieur		
		22	Evie Clark		
			Flames		
			Scarletts Beauty Salon		
			Hide N Suede		
			Francesco		
			Gentry Barber Club Winner Recruitment		
			Streetly Medical Clinic (Aesthetics)		
			Red & White		
			Obsessions		
_			Mimosa		
Restaurants					
	Υ	2	Delhi 6		
Cafes			Da Gino		
Cales	Υ	1	Mocha Coffee Lounge		
Takeaways	T	1	iviocità cottee Loutige		
Tancaways	Υ	2	Streetly Village Fish Bar		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs	'		Success visingerian par		
	Y	1	ATM - Coop food		
Post Offices		_			
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			6/7 - Walsall to Little Aston & Sutton Coldfield	Every 30 minutes	National Express WM
	Y	4 standard and 1 school service	78 - Sutton Coldfield to Streetly	Four times a day	National Express WM
	1		78A - Sutton Coldfield to Streetly & Kingstanding	Four times a day	National Express WM

Little Aston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Once per day (term	
			SFA1 - St Francis of Assisi service	time)	National Express WM
			3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Streetly	Every 30 minutes	National Express WM
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
				Every 30 minutes	
				Saturdays. Every 1	
			6/7 - Walsall to Little Aston & Sutton Coldfield	hour Sunday	National Express WM
				Four times a day	
	Υ	4	78 - Sutton Coldfield to Streetly	(Saturdays)	National Express WM
				Four times a day	
			78A - Sutton Coldfield to Streetly & Kingstanding	(Saturdays)	National Express WM
				Every 30 minutes	
			3 - Lichfield to Sutton Coldfield & Streetly	(Saturdays)	National Express WM
				Distance from	
Railway stations				settlement	
	N	0	Blake Street (just outside of settlement boundary)	1 mile	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)				9am	
Centre of settlement = Junction of Rosemary					
Hill Road and Walsall Road			A38 Weeford	10 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken					
to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes)	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment area = Birchbrook Industrial Park,		
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	IN IN	0	Shenstone	10 minutes	

Armitage with Handsacre

Armitage with Handsacre facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Poppins Day Nursery	74	
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Hayes Meadow Pre School		
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	v	2	The Croft Primary School	210	198
	Y	2	Hayes Meadow Primary School	210	171

Armitage with Handsacre facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Hart School, Rugeley (catchment school)	1238	1265
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	Υ	1	Horsefair Practice (Armitage surgery)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
			Nearest hospital is Samuel Johnson Hospital (Lichfield) - 4.6		
	N	0	miles		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Hospital with A&E				during peak hours 8- 9am	
HOSPITAL WITH A&E	N	0	Nearest A&E is Stafford Hospital (12.6 miles)	28.5	
Opticians	IV	Ü	ivearest AQL is Starrord Hospital (12.0 Illiles)	28.3	
Opticialis	N	0			
Dontists	IN	Ü			According now NHC nationts?
Dentists	N	0			Accepting new NHS patients?
Pharmacies	IN	Ü			
Filalillacies	Υ	1	Boots		
Culture and community	T	1	BOOKS		
Theatres					
Theatres	N	0			
Cinemas	14	Ü			
Cilientas	N	0			
Museum	14	Ü			
Ividseum	N	0			
Village/community hall	14	Ü			
Vinage/ community nan			Armitage with Handsacre Village Hall		
	Y	2	Armitage with Handsacre Bowls Pavilion		
Scout/cadet huts			Annuage with Humadure bowls i dymon		
2224, 2234, 1442	N	0			
Community/day centres					
,,,	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Y	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars		_	,		
			The Olde Peculiar		
			The Crown Inn		
	Y	4	Armitage Royal British Legion Club	ĺ	
			The Swan Inn		
Churches					

Armitage with Handsacre facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	2	Handsacre Methodist Church		
		2	St John the Baptist Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
			Outdoor bowls		
			Cricket grass pitch (just outside of settlement)		
			Junior football 11v11 grass pitch - Croft School		
	Υ	6	Adult grass football pitch		
			Rounders grass pitch - Croft School		
			Tennis court		
			Basketball court x 2		
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	Υ	1	Village Hall recreation area		
Equipped play areas					
			Armitage Village Hall play area		
		_	St Barbara's Road		
	Y	4	Millmoor Avenue		
			Upper Lodge Play Area		Refurbished 2019
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
			Old Road		
	Υ	4	A513		
	'	7	Rugeley Road		
			Lichfield Road		
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	2	United Reformed Church Yard		
			St John the Baptist Church Yard		
Water based recreation					
	Y	1	Trent & Mersey Canal		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0			
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
, 0				Complete coverage	
			12.2ha of amounth, annua an 22.2ha 0.4 Cha of annu	within 480m/10-	
	Υ		12.2ha of amenity space on 23 sites & 4.6ha of greenspace at	minute walk except to	
			Shropshire Brook Road	the west of the	<u>'</u>
				settlement. Canal	

Armitage with Handsacre facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				towpath inaccessible	
				at certain points.	
Green corridors					
			Cycle routes		
	Υ	3	Public rights of way		
			Trent & Mersey Canal		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
			Londis		
	Y	3	Premier Off Licence		
			John's Newsagents		
Single themed convenience store					
	Υ	_	N.J. & E.T. Coles Butchers		
		2	N.J. & E.T. Coles Bakery		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
			Carthy's Fishing Tackle		
	Y	3	UK Microsuction		
			Bespoke Hairdressing		
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	Plum Pudding Inn		
Cafes					
			The Vine Café - Methodist Church		
	Υ	1	Tuppenhurst Barn Café (just outside of settlement)		
			The Hatch Café		
Takeaways					
			Michaels Fish Bar		
		2	The Grill House		
	Y		Good View Chinese Takeaway		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	Υ	2	ATM - near Premier Off Licence		
			ATM - John's News		
Post Offices					
	Υ	1	Armitage Post Office		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Y	3 standard services and 3	105 Handsacre and Armitage to Netherstowe and Friary	Once per day (term	
1	1	school/college services	School	time)	LA Travel (Midlands)

Armitage with Handsacre facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			829 - Rugeley to Armitage and Netherstowe and Friary	Once per day (term	
			School	time)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
			817 - Rodbaston College to Handsacre/Armitage and	Once per day (term	
			Uttoxeter	time)	Select Bus Services
			830 - Hednesford to Rugeley, Handsacre and Hill Ridware	Once per day	Chaserider
			826 - Stafford to Handsacre and Lichfield	Every 1 hour	Chaserider
			828 - Stafford to Handsacre and Lichfield	Every 1 hour	Chaserider
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
				Every 1 hour	
			826 - Stafford to Handsacre and Lichfield	(Saturdays)	Chaserider
	v	3 Saturday services		Every 1 hour	
	'	3 Saturday services	828 - Stafford to Handsacre and Lichfield	(Saturdays)	Chaserider
				Once per day	
			830 - Hednesford to Rugeley, Handsacre and Hill Ridware	(Saturdays)	Chaserider
				Distance from	
Railway stations				settlement	
	N	0	Rugeley Trent Valley	3.6 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)			Principal road junction	9am	
Centre of settlement = Opposite war					
memorial, Armitage			A38 Hilliards Cross	13 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	Υ	1	Armitage Shanks (Ideal Standard)	In settlement	

Fradley

Fradley facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Footsteps Fradley	114	207
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Fradley Park Primary & Nursery	26	26
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Y	2	St Stephens Primary School	360	289

Fradley facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			Fradley Park Primary & Nursery (opened Sept 2022)	236	88
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	Friary School (catchment school) - 3.1 miles	1250	1228
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Alrewas GP Surgery - 2 miles (6 minute-drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
			Nearest hospital is Samuel Johnson Hospital (Lichfield) - 2.5		
	N	0	miles		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Hospital with A&E				during peak hours 8- 9am	
Hospital with A&E	A 1	0	Name of ASE is Occased Uponited Burston (O.O. miles)	9am 26	
Outisisus	N	0	Nearest A&E is Queens Hospital, Burton (8.8 miles)	26	
Opticians		•			
Doublete	N	0			A according to a see NUIC modio mag
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies	.,		No. the cond Discourse		
	Υ	1	Northwood Pharmacy		
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	2	Fradley Village Hall		
			Fradley Youth & Community Centre		
Scout/cadet huts					
2	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	N	0			
Pubs & Bars					
	N	0			
Churches					
	Υ	1	St Stephens Church		
Leisure facilities					

Fradley facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Outdoor sports types					
	Y	3	Mini soccer 7v7 grass pitches x 4 Skate park Multi use games area 38 x 17		
Indoor sports types					
	Υ	1	Fitness gym		
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	4	Fradley Manor playpark Hay End Lane-skate Park and MUGA Worthington Road Salt Lane (Redrow)		
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	2	St Stephens Church Yard Lichfield Crematorium (just outside of settlement)		
Water based recreation					
	Υ	1	Coventry Canal		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0	Coventry Canal		
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Y		4ha of amenity space on 7 sites	Complete coverage within 480m/10-minute walk	
Green corridors					
	Υ	3	Cycle route 54 Coventry Canal		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Υ	1	Соор		
Single themed convenience store					
	Υ	1	Smith & Ellis Butcher		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					

Fradley facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	1	Heads Up Salon		
	•	-			
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	Bilash		
Cafes					
	Υ	1	Café No8		
Takeaways					
			Greggs		
	Y	2	Subway		
			Fradley Fryer		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	Υ	1	ATM - coop		
Post Offices					
	Υ	1	Postal services provided from a single counter in the local		
		-	butchers		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
				Twice per day (term	
		818 - Fradley to Friary School 819 - Hill Ridware to Fradley to Netherstowe & Friary School 3 school services and 3 standard	818 - Fradley to Friary School	time)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
			Twice per day (term		
	Υ		time)	Diamond Bus East Midlands	
			Twice per day (term		
		services	817 - Alrewas to Fradley & Friary School	time)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
			12 - Lichfield to Fradley, Alrewas, Yoxall, Barton and Burton	Every 1 hour	Diamond East Midlands
			12E - Lichfield to Fradley & Burton	6 times per day	Diamond East Midlands
			33 - Lichfield to Fradley, back to Lichfield (Sheasby Estate &	- 1 161	
			Anson Gardens/Fradley Manor only)	Every half hour	Select Bus Service
Weekend bus services				Frequency	Operator
				Every 1 hour	
			12 - Lichfield to Fradley, Alrewas, Yoxall, Barton and Burton	(Saturdays and Sundays)	Diamond East Midlands
	Υ	3 Saturday services and 1 Sunday	12 - Licinieiu to Frauley, Alrewas, Yoxali, Barton and Burton	Every 1 hour	Diamona East Milaidius
	'	service	33 - Lichfield to Fradley	(Saturdays)	Select Bus Service
			23 Listing to Francy	6 times per day	SCIENCE BUS SCI VICE
			12E - Lichfield to Fradley & Burton	(Saturdays)	Diamond East Midlands
			·	Distance from	
Railway stations				settlement	
	N	0	Lichfield Trent Valley	4.9 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)			Principal road junction	9am	
Centre of settlement = Hay End Lane/Turnbull					
Rd junction			A38	3 minutes	

Fradley facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	Υ	1	Fradley Park	In settlement	

Alrewas

Alrewas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	v	2	All Saints Church of England Pre School		
	T	2	Stepping Stones Pre School	38	
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	All Saints Church of England Primary School	296	181
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	John Taylor High School (2.5 miles) - catchment school	1800	1557
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	Υ	1	Alrewas GP Surgery		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (4.4 miles)		
				Drive time (minutes)	
				during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Burton Queens Hospital (6.9 miles)	26.5 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	Y	1	Alrewas Dental Practice		No - private
Pharmacies				Drive time (minutes)	
	Y	1	Alrewas Pharmacy		
Culture and community					
Theatres					

Alrewas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	Υ	1	National Memorial Arboretum (just outside of settlement boundary)		
Village/community hall					
	Υ	1	Alrewas Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	Υ	1	1st Alrewas - William IV Road		
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile Library		Visits 2-3 times a month
Pubs & Bars					
	Y	4	The Crown Inn George & Dragon William IV Royal British Legion - Alrewas Branch		
Churches					
	Υ	2	Alrewas Methodist Church All Saints Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Y	6	Tennis courts x 2 Cricket pitch Basketball court Adult football grass pitch Junior football 11v11 grass pitch Mini soccer 7v7 grass pitches x 2		
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Y	2	Green Acres Play Park Alrewas playground		Open Spaces assessment 2024 identifies Alrewas as being particularly deprived of equipped play spaces
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					

Alrewas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	2	Mill End Lane		
		2	Somerville Road		
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	2	All Saints Church		
		_			
Water based recreation					
	Y	1	Trent & Mersey Canal		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
			National Forest		
	Y	3	River Trent		
			Trent & Mersey Canal		
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
				Complete coverage	
	Y		7.4 ha of amenity space on 12 sites	within 480m/10-	
				minute walk	
Green corridors					
	Υ	3	Trent & Mersey Canal		
Detail and comices			Cycle Route 54		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores			Gulf Petrol Station		
	Υ	2	The Cooperative		
Single themed convenience store			The Cooperative		
Single themed convenience store	Y	1	P Coates Butcher		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets	Y	1	P Coates Butcher		
nypermarkets/Supermarkets	N	0			
Laws Food Chause	IN.	0			
Large Food Stores	N.	•			
No	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
			Headliners hairdressing		
	Υ	4	Needwood Living Tier Hairdressing & Beauty		
			Class Boutique Hair & Beauty		
Restaurants			Class bounque Hall & beauty		
nestaurunts	Y	1	Delhi Divan		
Cafes	,		Denii Divan		
Curco	Y	1	The Bank		
Takeaways	'	•	THE BUILK		
Iancaways			Alrewas Fryer		
	Y	2	Alrewas Cantonese		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs			Allewas Calitoliese		
Daliks/ Dulluling Societies/ A livis					

Alrewas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	1	ATM - Cooperative		
Post Offices					
	N	0			Post office closed 2022
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			12 - Lichfield to Alrewas, Yoxall & Burton	Every 1 hour	Diamond Bus East Midlands
				Twice per day (school	
			805 - Alrewas to John Taylor School	service)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
		1 standard service and 4 school		Twice per day (school	
	Υ	services	806 - Kings Bromley to Alrewas and John Taylor School	service)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
		Scrvices		Twice per day (school	
			811 - Alrewas to John Taylor School	service)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
				Twice per day (school	
			817 - Alrewas to Fradley and Friary School	service)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Y	1 Saturday service		Every 1 hour	
	'	1 Saturday Service	12 - Lichfield to Alrewas, Yoxall & Burton	(Saturdays)	Diamond Bus East Midlands
				Distance from	
Railway stations				settlement	
	N	0	Nearest railway station = Lichfield Trent Valley	4.4 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)			Principal road junction	9am	
Centre of settlement - junction of Main St/Fox					
Lane			A38	3 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site = Fradley Industrial Park	6 minutes	

Whittington

Whittington facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Sheepwash Farm Day Nursery (just outside of settlement)	50	

Whittington facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Whittington Primary and Nursery School		
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Whittington Primary and Nursery School	336	307
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	King Edward VI School (catchment school)	1395	1607
Health					Capacity
() II				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre	Υ		Landar Madial Company Military Company	(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
Harriel When AGE	Y	1	Langton Medical Group Whittington Surgery		Yes
Hospital without A&E			N		
	N	0	Nearest hospital is Samuel Johnson Hospital (Lichfield) - 2.9 miles		
				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E			Nearest AGE is Constituting the site (40.0 or its)	9am	
2 11 1	N	0	Nearest A&E is Good Hope Hospital (10.9 miles)	19	
Opticians					
2	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	Υ	1	Whittington Pharmacy		
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	2	Thomas Spencer Hall Whittington Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts			Willtington village Hall		
Scout/cadet nuts		•			
Community (day, comba	N	0			
Community/day centres	A.I	2			
1th and the	N	0			O contraction of
Libraries	,	_	Madella Phase		Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	2	The Dog Inn		<u>'</u>

Whittington facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
			The Bell Inn		
Churches					
	Υ	1	St Giles Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Υ	8	18 hole golf course (just outside of settlement boundary) Adult football grass pitch x 1 Junior football 11v11 grass pitch x 2 Mini soccer 5v 5 grass pitch Mini soccer 7v7 grass pitch Cricket pitch x 2 BMX pump track Rounders grass pitch		
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	4	Jubilee Park Noddington Lane Swan Road Football Ground/Bit End Field		
Civic spaces					
·	N	0			
Allotments Cemeteries and churchyards	Υ	1	Neal Croft		
	Υ	1	St Giles Church Yard		
Water based recreation					
	Υ	1	Coventry Canal		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Coventry Canal		
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Υ		1.9ha of amenity space on 6 sites	Complete coverage within 480m/10- minute walk	
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Coventry Canal Cycle routes- various		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores	Y	1	The Cooperative		

Whittington facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Single themed convenience store					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	Υ	1	Downes and Daughters		
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	The Bell Inn		
Cafes					
	Υ	1	Main St Café		
Takeaways					
	Υ	1	Whittington Cantonese Takeaway		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			X65 - Lichfield to Whittington & Tamworth	Every 1 hour	Arriva Midlands
			765 - Lichfield to Whittington & Tamworth	Every 1 hour	Arriva Midlands
	Υ	2 standard and 2 school services		Once per day (term	
			766 - Whittington to Lichfield	time)	Chaserider
			SFA2 - Wilnecote to St Francis of Assisi	Once per day (term time)	National Express West Midlands
Weekend bus services			SFAZ - WIIIIecote to St Francis of Assist	Frequency	Operator
Weekend bus services				Every 1 hour	Operator
			X65 - Lichfield to Whittington & Tamworth	(Saturdays)	Arriva Midlands
	Υ	2 Saturday services	A03 - Element to Whitelington & Taniworth	Every 1 hour	Arriva Midiands
			765 - Lichfield to Whittington & Tamworth	(Saturdays)	Arriva Midlands
			Č	Distance from	
Railway stations				settlement	
	N	0	Lichfield Trent Valley	2.7 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)			Principal road junction	9am	
Centre of settlement = Main St/Langton Cres					
junction			A38 Swinfen island	7 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					

Whittington facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Britannia Enterprise Park, Lichfield	6 minutes	

Hopwas

Hopwas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Y	1	Thomas Barnes Primary School	105	106
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
11 - 10	N	0	The Rawlett School (catchment school) - 1.6 miles	1260	1074
Health				Number of mations	Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
Gr surgery/ nearth centre	N	0		(Jail 2024)	Yes
Hospital without A&E	.,	, v			163
Trospital William Tac	N	0	Nearest hospital is Sir Robert Peel Hospital (1.7 miles)		
		Ů	real collisions of the collision of the collisions of the collisio	Drive time (minutes)	
Hospital with A&E				during peak hours 8- 9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Good Hope Hospital (6 miles)	17	
Opticians					
	Υ	1	Colin Beeson Optometrist		
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Tamworth Pharmacy - 6 minutes drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			

Hopwas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	N	0			
Scout/cadet huts					
	Y	1	Hopwas Scout Hut (1st Hopwas Scouts)		
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Y	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars			,		
			The Tame Otter		
	Y	3	Coton & Hopwas Social Club (Members club)		
			The Red Lion		
Churches					
		_	Hopwas Methodist Church		
	Y	2	St Chad's Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
			Adult football grass pitch x 2		
	Υ	3	Cricket pitch		
			Junior football 11 v 11 grass pitch		
Indoor sports types					
	Y	1	Squash courts x 2		
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	2	Nursery Lane		
	Ť	2	The Red Lion (pub garden)		
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Y	2	St Chad's Church		
Water based recreation					
	Υ	2	River Tame		
		-	Coventry Canal		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Hopwas Woods		
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	

Hopwas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ		2 amenity greenspace sites	Complete coverage within 480m/10-	
				minute walk	
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Central Rivers Initiative		
	'	2	Coventry Canal		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Single themed convenience store					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Υ	2	The Tame Otter Red Lion		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			765 - Lichfield to Tamworth	Every 1 hour	Arriva Midlands North
			X65 - Lichfield to Tamworth	Every 1 hour	Arriva Midlands North
		2	D2 Davidett Calcad annica	Twice per day (school	LA Traval
	Υ	2 standard services and 3 school	R3 - Rawlett School service	service)	LA Travel
		services	R4 - Rawlett School service	Twice per day (school service)	LA Travel
			N4 - Nawiett School Service	Twice per day (school	LA Havei
			SFA2 - St Francis of Assisi service	service)	National Express West Midlands
Weekend bus services				Frequency	Operator
		20.1		Every 1 hour	•
	Y	2 Saturday services	765 - Lichfield to Tamworth	(Saturdays)	Arriva Midlands North

Hopwas facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Every 1 hour	
			X65 - Lichfield to Tamworth	(Saturdays)	Arriva Midlands North
				Distance from	
Railway stations				settlement	
	N	0	Tamworth Railway Station	2.6 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)			Principal road junction	9am	
Centre of settlement = A51 canal bridge			A5	4 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Lichfield Road Industrial Estate (Tamworth BC area)	2 minutes	·

Stonnall

Stonnall facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)					
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
•	Υ	1	St Peter's Church of England Primary Academy	147	140
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Friary School, Lichfield (Catchment school)	1250	1228
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	Υ	1	Stonnall Surgery		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Bloxwich Hospital (4.7 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is at Good Hope Hospital (Sutton Coldfield)	22 minutes	
Opticians					

Stonnall facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Shenstone Pharmacy - 6 min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Y	2	Stonnall Village Hall Stonnall Community Centre		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
			The Swan		
	Υ	2	The Royal Oak		
			,		
Churches					
	Υ	1	St Peter's Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Υ	2	Adult football grass pitch Mini soccer 7v7 grass pitch	1 1	
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	Y	1			
Equipped play areas					
· · · · ·	Y	1	Playing fields		
	T T	<u>+</u>			
Civic spaces	Ť	<u> </u>	-, 6		
Civic spaces	N	0			

Stonnall facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	1	Catersfield Lane		
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	St Peter's Church Yard		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0			
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Y		3 amenity greenspaces	Complete coverage within 480m/10- minute buffer	
Green corridors					
	Y	2	Cycle routes Public Rights of Way		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Y	2	Stonnall Local Main Street Convenience Store		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	Υ	3	Forestwest Interiors Tattoo & Body Piercing Parlour Just Hair		
Restaurants					
	Υ	2	Massala Club Swan Inn		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
			Massala Club		
	Υ	2	Stonnall Fish Bar		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
,	Υ	1	Main Street News ATM		
Post Offices					

Stonnall facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	v	1 school service and 1 standard	36 - Lichfield to Shenstone, Aldridge & Walsall	Every 1 hour	Chase Rider
	Y	service	SFA2 - St Francis of Assisi school service	Once per day	National Express WM
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Υ	1	36 - Lichfield to Shenstone, Aldridge & Walsall	Every 1 hour (Saturdays)	Chase Rider
Railway stations					
	N	0	Nearest railway station - Shenstone Railway Station	2.7 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
Centre of settlement = Junction of Main St and Westwick Close			A5 Muckley Corner	5 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Birchbrook Industrial Park Shenstone Business Park	5 minutes	

Kings Bromley

Kings Bromley facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Richard Crosse Pre School	Mixed nursery and reception class	
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Richard Crosse Primary School	120	111
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll

	Present				
Kings Bromley facilities/services		Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0	John Taylor High School - catchment school	1800	1557
Health					Capacity
Treatm				Number of patients	Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0			
		-	Nearest GP surgery - Yoxall (5 minute drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E	N.				
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (4.4 miles)		
			,,	Drive time (minutes)	
				during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Queens Hospital Burton	32 minutes	
Opticians			Nearest A&E is Queens Hospital Burton	32 minutes	
Opticians	N				
		0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
Fildifilacies	N			Boots, Armitage - 6	
	"	0		min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	_			
6:		0			
Cinemas	N				
	l N	0			
Museum		-			
	N	0			
		<u> </u>			
Village/community hall	V				
	Υ	1	Kings Bromley Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
,	N	0			
		,			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
		I		1	I

	Present				
Kings Bromley facilities/services		Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Libraries					Opening times
	Y	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	1	The Royal Oak		
Churches					
	Υ	1	All Saints Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Y	6	Adult football grass pitch Netball court Sailing lake (just outside of settlement) Fishing lake Cricket grass pitch Junior football 11 v 11 pitch x 2	1	
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	1	Village hall play area		
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Y	1	All Saints Church		
Water based recreation					
	Y	1	Manor Park Sailing Lake (just outside of settlement)		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0			
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	

	Present				
Kings Bromley facilities/services		Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ		5 amenity green spaces	Small area to far west of village outside 480 / 10-minute buffer	
Green corridors					
	Y	1	Public Rights of Way		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Y	1	Соор		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Y	1	Royal Oak		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	Y	1	Coop ATM		
Post Offices					
	Y	1	Kings Bromley Village Hall (open 1 hour a week)		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Y	3 (1 standard and 2 school services)	12 - Lichfield to Kings Bromley and Burton 819 - Hill Ridware to Kings Bromley and Friary School 806 - Alrewas to Kings Bromley and John Taylor High School	Every 1 hour Once per day Once per day	Diamond East Midlands National Express WM Diamond East Midlands
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Y	1	12 - Lichfield to Kings Bromley and Burton	Every 1 hour (Saturdays)	Diamond East Midlands

	Present				
Kings Bromley facilities/services		Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Railway stations					
	N	1	Nearest railway station is Lichfield Trent Valley	5.8 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8- 9am)				Drive time (minutes)	
Centre of settlement = A515/Alrewas Rd/Manor Rd junction			A515	1 minute	
Employment					
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes)	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Armitage Shanks and Fradley Park	Both 6 minutes drive	
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		

Drayton Bassett

Drayton Bassett facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	Little Acorns Nursery (outside of settlement boundary)		
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Manor Primary Academy Nursery	Mixed nursery and reception class	
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Manor Primary Academy	113	80
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Rawlett School, Tamworth (catchment school)	1260	1074
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Laurel House Surgery, Fazeley (5 minutes' drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Sir Robert Peel Hospital (1.5 miles)		

Drayton Bassett facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Drive time (minutes)	
				during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Good Hope (4.6 miles)	14 minutes' drive	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Fazeley pharmacy (4	
	N	Ů		mins drive)	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	2	W.I. Hall		
	Y	2	Sports Pavillion		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars			·		
	Υ	1	Drayton Bassett Village Club		
Churches					
	Υ	1	St Peter's Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
·			Golf club (just oustside of settlement)	1	
	Υ	_	Grass area with portable goals		
	Y	4	Basketball hoop and target wall		
			Tennis court		
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					

Drayton Bassett facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	1	Rectory Close		
Civic spaces					
As defined within the Open Spaces Assessment	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	St Peter's Church Yard		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0	Ancient woodland (just outside of settlement)		
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Υ		3 amenity green spaces		
Green corridors					
	Y	2	Public rights of way Cycle routes		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	N	0			
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Υ	1 school service	R15 Rawlett School service	Once per day (term time only)	LA Travel

Drayton Bassett facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Railway stations					
	N	0	Nearest railway station is Wilnecote Railway Station	2.3 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
Centre of settlement = Opposite Drayton Bassett Village Club			A453	4 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Drayton Manor Business Park	3 minutes	

Hill Ridware

Hill Ridware facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Y	1	Henry Chadwick Pre School	Mixed nursery and reception class	
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Y	1	Henry Chadwick Primary School	118	103
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Hart School (catchment school)	1238	1265
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Armitage Surgery (5 minute drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (5.6 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	

Hill Ridware facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Stafford Hospital (9.9 miles)	29 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Boots, Armitage - 5 min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Y	1	Hill Ridware Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	1	The Chadwick Arms		
Churches					
	N	0			
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	Y	2	Adult grass football pitch (just outside of settlement) Mini soccer grass pitch	1	
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	1	Uttoxeter Road		
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	Y	1	Oaklands Close		

Hill Ridware facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	N	0			
Water based recreation					
	Υ	1	Wade Lake - fishing (just outside of settlement)		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Wade Lake - site of biological interest (just outside of settlement)		
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Υ		3 amenity greenspaces		
Green corridors					
	Υ	1	Public rights of way		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	The Chadwick Arms		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	Υ	1	The Chadwick Arms (cantonese)		
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	Υ	1	Hill Ridware Village Hall (open 1 morning a week)		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			817 - Rodbaston College service	Once per day	Select Bus Services
		1 standard and 2 school services	819 - Friary/Netherstowe School service	Once per day	Diamond Bus East Midlands
	Υ		63 - Cannock to Rugeley	Once per hour	Chaserider
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Υ	1	63 - Cannock to Rugeley	Once per hour	Chaserider
Railway stations					
	N	1	Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	3.5 miles	

Hill Ridware facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-	
9am)				9am	
Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick					
Arms			A515	5 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Armitage Shanks	7 minutes	

Colton

Colton facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	The St Mary's CofE Primary School Nursery	Combined nursery and	
				reception class	
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	The St Mary's CofE Primary School	120	92
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Hart School (catchment school) - 1.9 miles	1238	1265
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Aelfgar Surgery, Rugeley (8 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E			·		
	N	0	Nearest is Beacon Park Hospital (6.6 miles)		
				Drive time (minutes) within peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Stafford Hospital (7.4 miles)	23 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?

Colton facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Morrisons Pharmacy, Rugeley - 7 mins	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	1	Colton Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	2	Ye Olde Dun Cow The Greyhound Inn		
Churches			The dicyhodila hin		
Chartnes	Υ	1	St Mary the Virgin		
Leisure facilities	•	_	Strictly the virgin		
Outdoor sports					
	N	0		1	
Indoor sports					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Y	1	Village Hall		
Civic spaces					
As identified within the Open Spaces Assessment	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	Colton Burial Ground		
Water based recreation					

Colton facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0			
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
				Area north of Colton	
	Υ		3 amenity greenspaces	not within 480m/10-	
				minute walk buffer	
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Public rights of way		
	•	2	Cycle routes		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	Υ	1	The Cow Shed (at the Dun Cow pub)		
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	Ye Olde Dun Cow		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	Υ	1	Colton Village Hall - open two hours per week		
Transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Railway stations					
·	N	0	Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	1.6 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from					
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-					
9am)				Drive time (minutes)	
Centre of settlement = Opposite the					
Greyhound			A5 Cannock	26 minutes	

Colton facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics (so					
will include areas outside of settlement			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build		
boundary but within parish boundary)			<u>/#E04008919</u>		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				within peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Power Station Road Business		
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	14		Area	4 minutes	

Longdon

Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)					
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	St James CE Primary Academy	105	102
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Friary Schoool (catchment school)	1250	1228
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Armitage Surgery (5 minute drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (4.1 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Stafford Hospital (10.6 miles)	29 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Boots, Armitage - 5 mins drive	
Culture and community					

Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
		_	The Longdon Club		
	Υ	2	Longdon Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts			3 0		
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	N	0			
Community/day centres					
.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
1.01.01.00	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars	-	_			
1 445 4 5415			The Longdon Club		
			The Longue House		
	Y	2	The Swan with Two Necks Pub		
Churches					
	Υ	1	St James the Great Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	N	0		1	
		<u> </u>			
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	N	0			
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	Υ	1	Borough Lane		
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	St James the Great Church		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Site of Biological Interest		

Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
				Access to amenity	
			6 amenity green spaces	greenspace within 10-	
			o amenity green spaces	minute walk/480m	
	Υ			buffer	
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Public rights of way		
	•	2	Cycle routes		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	,,	_	The Swan with Two Necks Pub		
	Υ	1			
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	Υ	1	Longdon Village Hall (open one hour per week)		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
·	,,	d sahaal saadsa	105 - Handsacre to Longdon and Friary and Netherstowe		·
	Υ	1 school service	School	Once per day	LA Travel (Midlands)
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Railway stations					
	N	1	Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	4.2 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)				9am	
Centre of settlement = Outside Swan with					
Two Necks			A38 Alrewas junction	17 minutes	

Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Armitage Shanks	5 minutes	

Elford

ette at teather to a tree	Burnel	Level of conserve	Partition and the second	Noutes	0
Elford facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)					
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	The Howard Primary School	84	61
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Rawlett School, Tamworth (catchment school)	1260	1074
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Whittington Surgery (8 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
·	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (3.9 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Burton Queens Hospital (9.2 miles)	36 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0			
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			

Elford facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	1	Elford Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
		2	The Sports Pavillion		
	Υ	2	The Crown		
Churches					
	Υ	1	St Peter's Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
			Adult football grass pitch		
			Cricket grass pitch		
	Y	5	Junior football 9v9 grass pitch		
			Mini soccer 5v5 grass pitch Mini soccer 7v7 grass pitch		
Indoor sports types			Willi Soccei 707 grass pitch		
illuool sports types	N	0			
Parks	IN	Ů			
rains	N	0			
Equipped play areas	N	Ů			
Equipped play aleas	Υ	1	Brickhouse Lane		
Civic spaces	'	-	Directionage Latte		
civic spaces	N	0			
Allotments	.,4	i i			
, modificities	Υ	1	Elford Hall Gardens Project		
Cemeteries and churchyards	•	-	2		
Control of an	Υ	1	St Peter's Church Yard		
Water based recreation		-	50. 50. 5 5		
			Fishing lakes		
	N	o	River Tame		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
<u> </u>	N	0			

Elford facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
	Υ		3 amenity greenspaces		
Green corridors					
			Central Rivers Initiative		
	Υ	3	Public rights of way		
			Cycle routes		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	The Crown		
Cafes					
	Υ	1	The Tuesday Coffee Shop		
Takeaways			· ·		
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	N	0			
Post Offices		-			
	Y	1	Elford Village Hall - open two hours per week		
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
,				Once per day (term	
	Υ	1 school service and 1 standard	82 - Landau Forte and Rawlett School service	time only)	South Derbyshire Coaches
		service	84 - Clifton Campville to Elford & Tamworth	Twice per day	South Derbyshire Coaches
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0		' '	
Railway stations					
	N	0	Nearest railway station is Tamworth Railway Station	4.6 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)				9am	
Centre of settlement = Opposite the Crown					
pub			A38 Cappers Lane	12 minutes	
Employment					

Elford facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Fradley Park	15 minutes	

Hammerwich

Hammerwich facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	Erasmus Darwin Academy (catchment) - 1.3 miles	1084	1130
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Darwin Medical Centre (3 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Hospital (3.7 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) within peak hours 8- 9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Good Hope Hospital (7.7 miles)	24 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Day Night Pharmacy - 5 minutes drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					

Hammerwich facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
			Hammerwich Community Centre		
	Υ	4	Hammerwich Cricket Club		
	T T	4	Ashmole Club		
			Hammerwich Womens Institute		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	N	0			Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
	N	0			
Churches					
	Y	1	St John the Baptist Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports					
	Υ	2	Cricket pitches x 2	1	
	· .	_	Bowls pitches x 2		
Indoor sports					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	2	Mansion Drive		
	·	_	Hospital Road		
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Y	1	St John the Baptist Church		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0			

Hammerwich facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
				Area north of Colton	
	Y		2 amenity greenspaces	not within 480m/10-	
				minute walk buffer	
Green corridors					
	Υ	1	Public rights of way		
	•	1			
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	N	0			
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
,	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices		Ţ.			
	N	0			
Transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0		, requestion	
Weekend bus services		<u></u>	Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Railway stations		_			
,	N	0	Nearest railway station is Lichfield City	4.2 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from					
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-					
9am)				Drive time (minutes)	
Centre of settlement = Hammerwich					
Community Centre			A5 Muckley Corner	4 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					

Hammerwich facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics (so					
will include areas outside of settlement					
boundary but within parish boundary)			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				within peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Mount Road Industrial Estate,		
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	IN	U	Burntwood	5 minutes	

Clifton Campville

Clifton Campville facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)					
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	St Andrew's Church of England Primary School	64	55
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Rawlett School, Tamworth (catchment school)	1260	1074
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Measham Medical Unit (12 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Sir Robert Peel Hospital (6.7 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes)	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Burton Queens Hospital (8.5 miles)	35 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Peak Pharmacy - 13 min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			

Clifton Campville facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	1	Clifton Campville & Haunton Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	1	The Green Man		
Churches					
	Υ	1	St Andrew & Haunton Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports					
	N	0		1	
Indoor sports					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas			The state of the s		
	Y	1	Millennium Green		
Civic spaces		-			
	N	0			
Allotments					
	Υ	2	Main Street		
			Netherseal Road		
Cemeteries and churchyards	.,		Charles a Charle Vand O Handara Charle		
Water hand requestion	Υ	1	St Andrews Church Yard & Haunton Church		
Water based recreation	N.				
Noticed and construct are enough	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace	NI NI	0	Assignst wardland (ivet outside of cottlement)		
	N	0	Ancient woodland (just outside of settlement)	A toit	
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
	Υ		5 amenity green spaces		
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Public rights of way		
			Cycle routes		
Retail and services					

Clifton Campville facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	The Green Man		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Υ	1 school/standard service	82/84 - Landau Forte and Rawlett School service & Tamworth		
	ī	1 school/standard service	town centre	3 per day	Lichfield City Coaches
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Railway stations					
	N	0	Nearest railway station is Tamworth Railway Station	6.3 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from				Drive time (minutes)	
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				during peak hours 8-	
9am)				9am	
Centre of settlement = Opposite the Green					
Man			Appleby Magna M42 Interchange	7 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment) Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
I aken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
within parish daministrative area.			inteps, / www.ons.gov.ung visualisations/ castompromes/build/	Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Mercia Park	7 minutes	

Wigginton

Wigginton facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	St Leonard's CofE (A) Nursery		
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	St Leonard's CofE (A) Primary School	120	131
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Rawlett School, Tamworth (catchment school)	1260	1074
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Hollies Practice (9 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Sir Robert Peel Hospital (2.9 miles)		
				Drive time (minutes)	
				during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Good Hope (8 miles)	35 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Tamworth Pharmacy -	
		-		5 mins drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	N	0			
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			

Wigginton facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Libraries					Opening times
	N	0			
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	1	The Old Crown		
Churches					
	Υ	1	St Leonard's		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	N	0		1	
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	N	0			
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	St Leonard's Church Yard		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	N	0			
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
	N	0			
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Public rights of way		
	T	2	Cycle routes		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0	_		
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					

Wigginton facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	Υ	1	The Old Crown		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Railway stations					
	N	0	Nearest railway station is Tamworth Railway Station	1.7 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
Centre of settlement = Opposite the Old Crown Employment			A5	12 minutes	
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Lichfield Road Industrial Estate	7 minutes	

Edingale

Edingale facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)					
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	Υ	1	Mary Howard Church of England Primary School	63	49
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	John Taylor High School (Catchment)	1800	1557

Edingale facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Alrewas surgery (11 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (5.5 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Burton Queens Hospital (7.8 miles)	35 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Alrewas Pharmacy - 10 min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	Υ	1	Edingale Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	Υ	1	Mobile library		Visits twice a month
Pubs & Bars					
	N	0		Village Hall holds regular pub nights	
Churches					
	Υ	1	Holy Trinity Church		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	N	0		1	
Indoor sports types					

Edingale facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	Υ	1	Moores Croft/Adventure Park		
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	Holy Trinity Church Yard		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Within National Forest area		
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
	Υ		9 amenity green spaces		
Green corridors					
	Υ	2	Public rights of way		
	•	2	River Mease		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	N	0			
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Public transport					

Edingale facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
			81 - John Taylor High School service	Once per day	South Derbyshire Coaches
		1 standard and 2 school services	82 - Landau Forte and Rawlett School service	Once per day	South Derbyshire Coaches
	Υ		84 - Clifton Campville to Edingale & Tamworth	Twice per day	South Derbyshire Coaches
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Railway stations					
	N	0	Nearest railway station is Tamworth Railway Station	5.7 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
Centre of settlement = Junction of Croxall Rd & Blakeways Cl			A38 Hilliards Cross	8 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8- 9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Fradley Park	14 minutes	

Upper Longdon

Upper Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)					
	N	0			
Primary schools					
	N	0	St James CofE Primary school, Longdon (catchment school)		
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Friary Schoool (catchment school)	1250	1228
Health					Capacity
				Number of patients	
GP surgery/health centre				(Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Brereton Surgery (4 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (5 miles)		

Upper Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Drive time (minutes)	
				during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Stafford Hospital (9.7 miles)	28 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					
	N	0		Boots Armitage - 4	
	.,	ů		min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	N	0			
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	N	0			
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	1	Chetwynd Arms		
Churches			·		
	N	0			
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	N	0		1	
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
1. 11 1	N	0			
Civic spaces		,			
	N	0			

Upper Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	N	0			
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Cannock Chase SAC		
Amenity greenspace				Access to amenity greenspace	
, ,	Υ		1 amenity green space		
Green corridors			, ,		
		_	Public rights of way		
	Υ	2	Cycle routes		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	Chetwynd Arms		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
-	N	0			
Post Offices					
D. LP. Constant	N	0			
Public transport			Due comice number	Facernoon	Operator
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	Υ	1 school service	105 - Handsacre to Longdon and Friary and Netherstowe School	Once per day	LA Travel (Midlands)
Weekend bus services	•		Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Railway stations					
	N	1	Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	4.2 miles	

Upper Longdon facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-	
9am)				9am	
·				9am	
Centre of settlement = Outside Chetwynd					
Arms			A38 Alrewas junction	17 minutes	
Employment					
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16					
years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.					
Includes areas outside of settlement boundary					
within parish administrative area.			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
				Drive time (minutes)	
Employment area in settlement/time taken				during peak hours 8-	
to nearest employment area by car				9am	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Armitage Shanks	5 minutes	

Harlaston

Harlaston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Howard Primary School, Elford (catchment school)		
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Rawlett School, Tamworth (catchment school)	1260	1074
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Alrewas surgery (12 minutes drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Sir Robert Peel Hospital (5.5 miles)		
Hospital with A&E				Drive time (minutes)	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Burton Queens Hospital (8.5 miles)	34 minutes	
Opticians					
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies					

Harlaston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
	N	0		Alrewas pharmacy -	
	IN	O .		10 min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
,	Υ	1	Harlaston Village Hall		
Scout/cadet huts			<u> </u>		
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries		Ţ.			Opening times
	N	0			
Pubs & Bars	.,	, , ,			
T UNS Q DUIS	Y	1	The White Lion		
Churches	'	1	THE WHITE LIOH		
Citationes	Y	1	St Matthews Church		
Leisure facilities	T	1	St Matthews Church		
Outdoor sports					
Outdoor sports	N	0		1	
Indoor sports		Ü		1	
illuool sports	N	0			
Parks	IN	U			
Parks	N	0			
For the section of th	N N	U			
Equipped play areas		4	Managhaga		
Civile arrange	Y	1	Manor Lane		
Civic spaces					
As defined within the Open Spaces Assessment	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	St Matthews Church yard		
Water based recreation					
	N	0			
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
ğ .	Y	1	River Mease SAC		

Harlaston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace				greenspace	
	Υ		2 amenity green spaces		
Green corridors					
			River Mease		
	Υ	3	Public rights of way		
			Cycle routes		
Retail and services					
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
7	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops	.,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			
Non convenience shops	N	0			
Restaurants		, , ,			
Restaurants	Υ	1	The White Lion		
Cafes	Y	1	The White Lion		
Cates					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
				Once per day (term	
	Υ	2 school services	82 - Landau Forte and Rawlett School service	time only)	South Derbyshire Coaches
			84 - Clifton Campville to Harlaston & Tamworth	Twice per day	South Derbyshire Coaches
Weekend bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0			
Railway stations					
	N	0	Nearest railway station is Tamworth Railway Station	4.6 miles	
Time taken to principal road junction from					
centre of settlement during peak hours (8-					
9am)				Drive time (minutes)	
Centre of settlement = Opposite the White			Appleby Magna M42 Interchange	12 minutes	
Lion			A38 Alrewas	10 minutes	
Employment					

Harlaston facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)					
Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics (so will include areas outside of settlement boundary but within parish boundary)			https://www.ons.gov.uk/visualisations/customprofiles/build/		
Employment area in settlement/time taken to nearest employment area by car				Drive time (minutes)	
As defined within the Local Plan Policies Maps	N	0	Nearest employment site is Lichfield Road Industrial Estate	12 minutes	

Hamstall Ridware

Hamstall Ridware facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Education	Y/N	How many are there?	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Nurseries (year round provision)					
	N	0			
Nurseries/Pre schools (term time only)					
	N	0			
Primary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	Henry Chadwick Primary School, Hill Ridware (catchment school)		
Secondary schools				Number of places	Number currently on roll
	N	0	The Hart School (catchment school)	1238	1265
Health					Capacity
GP surgery/health centre				Number of patients (Jan 2024)	Accepting new patients?
	N	0	Nearest GP surgery - Yoxall Surgery (7 minute drive)		Yes
Hospital without A&E					
	N	0	Nearest is Samuel Johnson Community Hospital (5.8 miles)		
				Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-	
Hospital with A&E				9am	
	N	0	Nearest A&E is Queens Hospital, Burton (8.4 miles)	30 minutes	
Opticians		_			
	N	0			
Dentists					Accepting new NHS patients?
	N	0			
Pharmacies				D 1 4 11 40	
	N	0		Boots, Armitage, 13 min drive	
Culture and community					
Theatres					
	N	0			

Hamstall Ridware facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Cinemas					
	N	0			
Museum					
	N	0			
Village/community hall					
	N	0			
Scout/cadet huts					
	N	0			
Community/day centres					
	N	0			
Libraries					Opening times
	N	0			
Pubs & Bars					
	Υ	1	The Shoulder of Mutton Inn		
Churches					
	Υ	1	Church of St Michael and All Angels		
Leisure facilities					
Outdoor sports types					
	N	0		1	
Indoor sports types					
	N	0			
Parks					
	N	0			
Equipped play areas					
	N	0			
Civic spaces					
	N	0			
Allotments					
	N	0			
Cemeteries and churchyards					
	Υ	1	Church of St Michael and All Angels		
Water based recreation					
	Υ	1	Hamstall Fishery		
Natural and semi natural greenspace					
	Υ	1	Lakes at Hamstall Fishery		
Amonitus auconomos				Access to amenity	
Amenity greenspace	N	0		greenspace	
Cucon considere	IN	U			
Green corridors	Υ	4	Dublic rights of way		
Retail and services	Y	1	Public rights of way		
netali and services					

Hamstall Ridware facilities/services	Present	Level of presence	Facility name	Number	Capacity
Convenience stores					
	N	0			
Hypermarkets/Supermarkets					
	N	0			
Large Food Stores					
	N	0			
Non convenience shops					
	N	0			
Restaurants					
	Υ	1	The Shoulder of Mutton Inn		
Cafes					
	N	0			
Takeaways					
	N	0			
Banks/Building Societies/ATMs					
	N	0			
Post Offices					
	N	0			
Public transport					
Weekday bus services			Bus service number	Frequency	Operator
	N	0	Bus service number		Operator
Weekday bus services Weekend bus services	N		Bus service number Bus service number	Frequency Frequency	Operator Operator
	N N	0			·
				Frequency	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations				Frequency 4.5 miles	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from	N	0	Bus service number	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes)	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-	N	0	Bus service number	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am)	N	0	Bus service number	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes)	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms	N	0	Bus service number	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment Distance travelled to work (% of people 16	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment) Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics.	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment)	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment) Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley A38 Alrewas	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment) Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area. Employment area in settlement/time taken	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley A38 Alrewas	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am 14 minutes	·
Weekend bus services Railway stations Time taken to principal road junction from centre of settlement during peak hours (8-9am) Centre of settlement = Outside Chadwick Arms Employment Distance travelled to work (% of people 16 years or over in employment) Taken from Census 2021 parish statistics. Includes areas outside of settlement boundary within parish administrative area.	N	0	Bus service number Nearest railway station is Rugeley Trent Valley A38 Alrewas	Frequency 4.5 miles Drive time (minutes) during peak hours 8-9am 14 minutes Drive time (minutes)	·